
   

22015 Marine View Drive South, Suite 2B Des Moines WA  98198 
To enhance our community’s quality of life by providing access to and promoting participation in aquatics programs 

 

The Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District is committed to compliance with both the Washington Law Against Discrimination and the 
Americans with Disabilities Act.  The District’s regular meeting room has limited access for wheelchairs and other mobility assistive devices.  In 
order to accommodate individuals that require the use of such devices, please notify the District at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting to 
allow for relocation to a more accessible location.  Please contact Linda Ray, District Clerk, 206.429.3852 to make a request. 

 

 
 

Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 

22015 Marine View Drive South 
 

April 21, 2020 
6:00 p.m.  

Regular Meeting (Remote Meeting)* 
 

 
Due to COVID-19 and Proclamation 20-28, all district meetings are held remotely.   If 
you wish to listen in, please do so at (877) 309-2073.  Public comment can be made by
email to info@mtrainierpool.com.   See stipulations below. For more information email 
Linda Ray at linda.ray@desmoinespool.org or call us at (206) 429-3852. 

 AGENDA 

 
6:00  1. CALL TO ORDER ROLL CALL 

6:03 2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

6:06 3. ADOPTION/MODIFICATIONS OF AGENDA  

6:09 4. ANNOUNCEMENTS, PROCLAMATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 

6:12 5. PUBLIC COMMENT (Please Limit to Three [3] Minutes)  
Remote Meeting: If you wish to make public comment, please submit in writing via email to 
info@mtrainierpool.com by Noon on Tuesday, April 21st. Please include your name, address 
and contact phone number. All timely submitted public comment will be read at the meeting 
subject to the time limit. Any public comment received after noon, will be read at the 
following regular  meeting. 

6:15 6. CONSENT AGENDA 
 a.  EXPENDITURE/REVENUE SUMMARY 
   

 b.  STAFF/CONTRACTOR/COMMITTEE REPORTS 
  Board Committees 
  District General Manager Administration Report 

c.  ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
  March 17, 2020, Regular Meeting 

d.  CORRESPONDENCE 
 2019 Jurisdiction Survey  

 e.  BANK TRANSFERS (REVENUE) 
  None 



   

22015 Marine View Drive South, Suite 2B Des Moines WA  98198 
To enhance our community’s quality of life by providing access to and promoting participation in aquatics programs 

 

The Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District is committed to compliance with both the Washington Law Against Discrimination and the 
Americans with Disabilities Act.  The District’s regular meeting room has limited access for wheelchairs and other mobility assistive devices.  In 
order to accommodate individuals that require the use of such devices, please notify the District at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting to 
allow for relocation to a more accessible location.  Please contact Linda Ray, District Clerk, 206.429.3852 to make a request. 

 

 
           -2- 
 
f.  VOUCHER APPROVAL 

  T.B.D. 
 g.  KING COUNTY ELECTRONIC FUNDS TRANSFERS (EXPENSES) 
  T.B.D.  

 

 7. BUSINESS (COVID-19 RELATED) 

6:20 a.  Emergency Declaration 

6:40 b. Continuity of Operations Plan/Staffing 
   

6:50 c. 272 Telecommuting Policy  
 

7:00 d. 527 Use of Electronic Signatures 

7:10 e. Economic and Budget Implications 

 
UPCOMING MEETINGS 

 To be Determined. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 



Des Moines Pool MetropOlitan Park District 

AGENDA ITEMS SUMMARY SHEET 

Agenda Item #:.-22:9. 

Under: Consent Agenda 

I Subject: Consent Agenda 

Background/Summary : 

Assigned to: Clerk of the Board Meeting Date: April 21, 2020 

Attachment: Yes 

To improve process and better utilize time, the following items have been moved to the Consent Agenda: 

Item 6a: Financial Summary 
Expenditures March 2020: Total $79,493.12 
• Admin Expenditures = $30,393.13 Ops Expenditures = $49,961.99 Capital Expenditures = $0.00 

Revenue March 2020: Total $49,925.88 
Taxes & Interest = $3,841 .00 Mise Revenue = $20,855.74 MRP Revenue = $25,229.13 

Item 6b: Staff/Committee Reports 
• Committee 
• District General Manager Administration Report 

Item 6c: Adoption of Minutes 
• March 17, 2020, Regular Meeting Minutes 

Item 6d: Correspondence - None 

Item 6a: Bank Transfers (MRP Revenue) reported above 

Item 7f: Voucher Approval - The following voucherlwarrants totaling $33,256.11 were approved for payment 
• $16,303.58 was processed on March 9, 2020 
• $4,463.31 was processed on March 24, 2020 
• $12,489.22 was processed on March 24, 2020 

Item 6g: Funds Transfers (Payroll) • The following Electronic Transfers to King County totaling $46,152.21 were 
processed for payment 
• $21,384.78 approved for payroll on March 9, 2020 
• $24,767.43 was approved for payrOll on March 18, 2020 

A total of $79,408.32 was processed in March 2020 under the oversight of the Clerk of the Board and President of the 
Board. 

Per RCW 42.24. 180(3). "The legislative body shalf provide for its review of the documentation supporting claims paid and for its 
approval of a/l checks or warrants issued in payment of claims at its next regularly scheduled public meeting or, for cities and towns, 
at a regularly scheduled public meeting within one month of issuance;". 

I Fiscal Impact: N/A 

Proposed Motion: I move to approve (or not to approve) the Consent Agenda including the vouchers and electronic 
transfer r uests rocessed in March 2020 totalin $79,408.32. 

Reviewed by District Legal Counsel: Yes__ No _--'x'---_ Date: ____ _ 

Two Touch Rule: -==JN~/~At:=_First Board Meeting (Infonnat ional) 
_ NfA Second Board Meeting (Action) 

Action Taken: Adopted Rejected Postponed 

Follow·up Needed: Ves, ___ No'_-,X,-_ Report back date: _ _ __ _ 

I Notes: 





2020 EXPENDITURES 
Beginning Balance = $1,008,967.17 
Ending Balance = $978,341.72 

March 2020 

Categoryl Acc l ll Reference Mar 2020 YTO E~pense 2021} Budget Budget Balance % of Budget 

Salaries & Wages 
00l-QOO.~57s.-20.-10..00 Cormjs$loneB - $ubsKftM $839.38 $2,<113.17 512,800.00 10,386.83 "" 00 1-(l()().()()().S76-20-1 0-0 1 Disirid Manager - WtJfI& 55,530.49 $17.785.74 $98,365.00 80,579.26 '''' 00 1 ..()()O..()()O. 576-20-1 0-02 Disbict Clertl-Wage 51 .726.25 $5,361.05 $27,037.50 21,650.45 "" 001-000-000-576-21·10-01 Aquatics Mg' _Wage S4,4 10.S9 $12,672.09 $71,997.00 59,324.91 "" 001-000-000-576-21-25-02 Aquatic Coordinator 53.546.96 $9,032.46 $105,000.00 95,;el.54 .. 
00I"()()o"()()o'S76-21·3(1...() 1 Lifeguards $15.202.54 $44,331 .18 $190,000.00 14S,e68.82 "" 001~76-21·30-02 -- $1 ,358.0 1 $3.345.42 $40,000.00 36.654.58 '" 00 l"()()o"()()o'S76--21-32-02 Head Uleguards $5,651 .35 $13,263.36 $33.142.80 20,_t79 .44 ,,,. 
001-000-000-576-20.-21·19 Payrol Texes $12.225.48 $34.824.80 $169,000.00 134,175.20 "" 001-000-000-576-21-33-04 Overtime (On $000 $0.00 $1,500.00 1,500.00 '" 001--000--000.576-21-33-05 Family Medical Leave (FMLA) $0.00 $0.00 $868.20 "'.20 '"' 00 1 --QOO.O()()..576--21--33-QO Side. Pey $1 ,017.86 52,102.14 $12.9-4Vil8 10,840.84 "" Total Salelin & Wag" $51 ,5GB.91 $1~,055.27 $7SO,310.SO "8,096.07 , .... 
Personal Benefits 

001~576--20-22·30 Pe>&lIlal Benefits (AWCfDRS) $2.060.10 $7,675.42 $!5.728.00 28.052.58 ,,% 
001--000--000-576--20-22-40 Fringe BeneIII3 (Car. Mileage) $0.00 5210.00 $2,000.00 1,730.00 ,,% 

Total PenIooaI Benefits $2,060.10 $7,945.42 $37,728.00 $29,782.58 ,,% 

Office Supplies 
001-CJOO.OOO.576--20-31 -00 Disbicl 0fIIee Supplie$ $239.G4 $914.09 55.000.00 4 .085.111 "" 001~576--20-3!).00 OIl1ce Equipment (llOIl-aIpitalileO-SAA) $446.34 $446.34 $3,500.00 3.053.66 "" 00I--OOO--000-576--20-3~1 Computer Equipment (Noo-a.pitaliredj 515.39 515.39 $5,500.00 5 ,484.61 '" Total Offiee Supplies 5700.77 51,375.82 $14,000.00 12,624.18 '''' 
Maintenance & Repair Supplies 
001-000-000-576-21.31-00 Mmtenance SuppfleS and Smail Tools $0452.07 $0477.33 $3,000.00 2 ,522.67 "" 001--000-000-576--21-35-02 Janitorial Supplies 5511.15 5997.55 $ 5.000.00 4 .002.45 ""' Total Malrrten"nce & Rep'lr Supplies $511.22 $1,474.88 $8,000.00 6,525.12 " .. 
Pool Supplies 
001--Q(l(l..()()()576-20-40-0C1 Efl1)Ioyee Recognition $0.00 ""." 51.200.00 1,169.13 ,,, 
00 1..()(lO..(l()O.576-2 1-35-01 POOOC_ $193.16 5837.77 $20.000.00 111,162.23 .% 
00 l -CJOO.OOO.578--21 ·35-15 Speci81 Pool Events $31 .54 5375.46 52,150.00 2.374.54 ,,% 
001-000-000-576-21-42-00 Uniforms &Clothing $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 ,"",00 0% 
001-000-000-576-21-43-06 First Aid Supplies $0.00 $000 5300.00 ""'.00 0% 
00I--OOO--000-576-21-49-{)1 lifeguard Supplies & Equip 51.057.65 $2,589.98 51 .000.00 (1,S8U8j ,,'" 

TotiIl PoOl Supplies 51 ,282.35 $3,834.08 525,750.00 21 ,915.92 "" 
Scholarships 
001-000-000-576-20-40-20 Faith Callahan "'''' 51.m.94 $18.000.00 16,422.06 ". 

Total Schoblrships ...... 51,577.94 $18,000.00 16,422.06 ". 

Pool Equipment 
001--000-000-576-21.35-06 Equipmenl· BecSys PRobes (ER&R) so.oo SO.OO $5.500.00 5.500.00 '"' 001 --OOQ..OOO.576-21 -35-11 Ceiling Tile Replacement (ER&R) $0.00 SO.OO S2.ooo.oo 2.000.00 .. 
001~576-11-35-ll ADA Pool Stail$ (ER&R) $000 $0.00 16.000.00 6 ,000.00 '" 001~576-21·35-13 Emergeney Uglltino Replaeemenl (ER&R) $0.00 SO.OO $2,200.00 2.200.00 '"' TotiIl Pool Equipment $0.00 $0.00 515,700.00 15,700.00 '" 
Prafes.lona l $ves • Front Offc 



, 

Category! ACCIII Reference Mar 2020 vrc bpens.e 2020 Budget Budget Balance 0/. of Budget 

001-OOO-00G-S76-2a.-.l-01 Con5ulling Contracb SO.oo SO.OO $10,000.00 10,000.00 "" 00I-QOO.OOO...576-2Q...41-04 Legal SeMc::es Contract (SnullI) $1.525.00 $3.130.50 $14,000.00 10,869.50 '''' 001-000-000-576-20-41-05 Financial Management Software _ VisiooMS SO.OO $980.03 $7,700.00 6 .719.97 ,,% 
001-000-000-576-20-41 -08 IT AdmirVComputer Servloes (eMIT) 51.226.00 $3.678.00 $22,500.00 18,822.00 ,,% 
001-000-000-576-20-49-10 Printing/Copying (Canon) $88.35 $511.02 55.250.00 4 ,738.98 "'" 00I-OOO-OOO-576-21-42..{)2 Scheduling Software 52,400.00 52,400.00 so.oo (2,400.00) 

00I-OOO-OOO-S76-21-42-03 ReaNtiorI Mgm! Software (CivicRec) $0.00 SO.OO $5,445.00 5,"5.00 '"' 001-000-000-576-21 ·42·04 Credit Card Transactions (Authorize,net) S69.50 $199.70 51,500.00 1,300.30 ,,. 
001-000-000-576-21 -42_05 PayrolllHR (Heartland) $482.50 $1 ,496.75 $7,700.00 6.203.25 '''' 001-000-000-576-21-42-08 Water~ [Mountain Mist) $237.38 $463.13 $3,000.00 2.536.87 ,,% 

T alai Prof Setvices-Front Offc $6,028.73 $12,859 .13 s n ,095.00 64,235 .87 ,,% 

Professional Svcs • Maintenance 
001-000-000-57&-21)...41-09 Janitorial S.rvic:es-Distriet OffICe 5160.00 $448.00 52,160.00 1.712.00 "''' 001-000-000-576-21-31-01 Cuslodial so 00 so.oo $3,245.00 3.245.00 "'" oo1..CJ00.000-576-21_31-02 CO2 SeNices (AlrGas) 5372.64 $1,186.34 51.000.00 (lee 34) 119% 

001--CJOO.OOO.57&-21-41_2O Gutlef and Roar MaMgllment $0.00 $0.00 $3.300.00 3.300.00 "" 001-000-000-576-21-48-02 Rekey Services (Bilfs Locksmith) 50.00 $0,00 $1,000.00 1,00000 0% 
001-000-000-576-21-41-30 landscaping Service$ (NW Landscape,) $548.91 $2 ,394.73 $6J98 .00 4 ,403.27 "" 001-000-000-578-21-48-10 Maintene ...... Contract (MacO-MiUer) $0.00 $4.573.80 $20,119.52 15.545.12 '"'' 001-000-000-576-21---48-11 MOOtenaAOe Conlrad (Aquatic Specielty) so 00 55«.31 SJ.OOO.OO 2 .455.69 ,,.. 

Total Prof ~es-Mlll'lten.nce 51,081.55 $9,147.18 $40,622.52 31,475.34 ' 3% 

Repairs & Maintenance 
001--CJOO.OOO.576--21-48-QO Mainterlance Services (non.contrac:tod) 5170.51 $2.935.01 $100,000.00 97 .064.99 "" ool--CJOO.OOO.576--21--48-01 OfficeIIT Equipment Repaks $0.00 so.oo $2,000.00 2.000.00 "" Tot.1 Rep.l,. & M;linten.nee 5 170.51 52,935.01 $ 10 2,000.00 99,064.99 3% 

Communications 
001-000-000-576--20-41-02 Web Oetign & Mainten.11'1Qf SO.OO $62.50 $2,000.00 1.1137.50 3% 
001-000-000-576--20-41 _10 MS Suscription MS QffioI!o 365 $332.20 $1 .002.10 $6,000.00 4 .997.90 "'" OOI~76--20-42-OO Postage & Mailing $ 161 .70 $169.80 $1 ,000.00 830.20 ,,% 
001--000-000-576-20--42-01 Telephor.ellnternet Services (C0mc3st) $171.37 $1,199.45 $6,750.00 5.550.55 ,,% 
001 -000-000-576--20--42-02 Cell Phone (Google Fi) $ 57.18 $172.83 $1 ,500.00 1 .327. 17 '''' ool--OQO-OOO.57&-20-42-03 Work Email Accounts (Google Suite) 533.00 $108.83 $500.00 391.17 22% 
ool--CJOO.OOO.576--20-42-04 Email Notification Syslem (CMnpaignMOnhot) 559.00 $177.00 $1140.00 00300 ,,% 

Total COmmunicatlona $814.45 $2,892.51 $18,5~.00 15,697.-49 "" 
Training & Travel 
00l-OOO-OQO.S76-2G--<43-10 Travel Elcpenses (Mileage. Tolls) $0.00 57.36 51.500.00 1,492.64 "" ool--CJOO.OOO.576--21--43-01 Trav~ Expenses (Lodging. Pef Diem) SO.OO so 00 51.000.00 1.000.00 "" ool--CJOO.OOO.576--21--43-02 Training (lGLflNSI certs) $0.00 5498.40 52.500.00 2.001.60 "'" 001-OOO-DOO-576--21-43-0:) Certificeliot\s (non WSI) 50.00 "'.00 U ,OOO.OO 3.000 .00 "" 001--000-000-576--21-43-04 In Servioe Supplies (Internal Training) $ 148.57 $1 48.57 $ 2.500.00 2,351.43 " 001-000-000-576--21-43-05 Swim Lesson Licen!ling (AlTIer Red CrO$$) $0.00 "'.00 Sl .5OO.oo 1,500.00 0% 
001--OQO-OOO.576--21 --43-07 Ma~ Staff Trairmg $983.00 51 ,143.00 $2,500.00 1.357.00 ~% 

Total Training & Tra'ffl SI ,13 1.57 $1,797.33 $14,500.00 12,702.67 "" Advertising 
001-Q()().000-576-20--41-07 Dislrlet Advertising $1 ,054.87 $1.621.53 $22,500.00 20.878.47 "" 001-000-000-576-20--41-13 Sponsorthlp Supporled 50.00 SO.OO $2.000.00 2 .000.00 '"" 001-000-000-576-20-<12-05 Bulk Mailing - District Posk;erd so 00 so.oo $4.000.00 4 ,000.00 "" 001--000-000..576-20-49-09 Bulk Pmting - DisIrict Po&ICard so 00 SO.OO 52.200.00 2,200.00 "" ool--CJOO.OOO.576-21-41-04 Ad Design $2.368.50 52.948.50 $500.00 (2,448,50) ''''% 

Total Advertising Sl,443.J7 $4,570.03 S31 ,2OO.OO 26.629.97 "" Rentals & Leases 
001--CJOO.OOO.576--20--45-00 Disbict 0fIIce Rental (Zen) so 00 51 .435 .00 512.500.00 11 ,065.00 n% 
001-000-000-576--20--45-01 SIDrage Rental (AAM.) 5275.00 5825.00 SJ.6OO.00 2.775.00 23% 
00 1 --CJOO.OOO. 576--20--4 5-02 MisoeHaneous R<lflta~ $138.29 $658.65 $2,500.00 1.841.35 26% 

Total Rentals & Len" $413.29 $2,918.65 $18 ,600.00 15,681 .35 "" 
Utilities 
001 -000-000-576--2 1-47-01 EIec1rid1y (PSE) $8,652.07 $20.497.59 575.000.00 54.502.41 2'% 
OOI--CJOO.OOO.576--21-47-02 Wa ter (Highline) 5126.16 $1.930.48 59.000.00 7 .069.52 ,,% 
001-000-000-576--21--47-03 GarbagelRecyciing (RecoIogy) $&(HI 81 .095.40 54.200.00 3,104.60 26% 

201'Expmd;bns , 



3 

Categoryl ACt! II Reference Mar 2020 YTD E.pense 2020 Budget Budget Balance ". of Budg('t 

00I-OOO-OOO-S7S.Z1-47--04 Sewer (Midway) $757.96 '1,415.02 $3,000.00 1,5&4.98 "" Total utilitles $8,196.60 S2A,938A9 $91,200.00 66,261.51 "" Insurance 
001-000-000-576-20-46-00 Insurance . WClA, AWe $0.00 $12.332.00 $ 16,000.00 3,668.00 "" Total Insurance $0." 512,332.00 $16,000.00 3.668.00 77% 

Miscellaneous 
001-000-000-576-20-41-12 AMG Liabilities SO.OO $0.00 $500.00 500.00 '" 001-000-000-576-20-49-07 Mise. ~epaneiM $34.41 $93 . .s 51,000.00 ""''' '" 001-OCJG-OOO.576-20-<49-06 Printing & COpying (OutsIde Vendors) $0.00 5233.20 $1,500.00 1,266.80 "" 001'ooo-oo()"'S76-20-49-60 DuesIMembefshpIbsaiptions ",728.30 $ 2,078.44 52.625.00 "'.56 '9% 
001--000-000-576-20-51-50 Fingerprintingl8ackgroul'!d ,*,-,*s $0.00 5232.00 $1,750.00 1,518.00 "" Total MI5C'I!aneous $1,762.71 52,637.10 $1,315.00 4 ,137.90 36% 

Intergovemmental Services 
001-000-000-576-20-41-11 State Audit SO." $4 ,664.36 $6,000.00 1,335.64 78% 
001..Q()()..000-576-2().51-00 EIection Cosls SO.OO $0.00 $30,000.00 30,000.00 0% 
001-000-000-576-20-51-02 Inspectiofls (File Ext) 50,00 SO.OO $1,000.00 1,000.00 '" 001-000-000-576-20-51-03 B&O T wAgency (OOR) $0.00 $273.87 1 1.000.00 726.13 27% 
001-OCJO.OOO.576-20-51· 10 Services ContnIct - City at Des Moines $302.19 $805.80 SS.OOO.OO 4 .194.20 "" 001 -OCJO.OOO.57&.-21-49-2O PenTits and Fees (KCHD. CoDM. Cash Mgmt) SO.OO SO" $1.000.00 1.000.00 '"' TotalintergQV Services $302.19 $5,744.03 $44,000.00 38,2&5.97 "" 
Capital 
001-000-000-594-76-41-01 Capital - Pemt1s, Fees, Inspections SO.OO $0.00 $1,250.00 1,250.00 "" ool-OCJO.-OOO-594-76-41-03 Capital - Ardlll!!ctsJEogineet's $0.00 SO.OO $7.500.00 7 .500.00 '"' 301-OCJO.-OOO-397 -00-00-00 Transfef From General FI.IM to Capital $0.00 $0,00 $75.000.00 75.000.00 ()% 

Total Capitals SO." SO." $113,750.00 $83,750.00 '" 
TOTAL ADMINISTRATION $30,393.13 $102.235.22 $575,505.50 473.270.28 18% 
TOTAL Of>ERATIONS $49,961.99 $137,547.40 $752,408.50 614,861.10 "" TOTAL CAPITAL $0.00 SO ... $83.750.00 83,750.00 .% 
GRANO TOTAL MO. EXPENDITURES $ 79,493.12 $242,034.87 $1,414,421 .02 $1,183,226.99 '''' 

2019~ , 





2020 REVENUE -- March 2020 

Account" R~fef~nce Mar 2020 YTO Balance 2020 Budget Budgl't BalanC(!o 

General Fund Taxes 
OOl-000Q00.311-11-QO..OO Property Taxes $45,884.14 $62,434.99 $0.00 $0.00 

OQl-()()()'000-311-11"{)(}'Ol Timber Harvest Ta~ $0.00 SO.oo SO.oo SO.OO 
OOl-ooo-o()()"311-2o-oo-oCl Leasehold Excise Til. SO.oo $1.315.86 SO.OO SO.OO 

Tobl Ge~1 Fund $45,884.14 $63,750.85 SO.oo SO.oo 

Charges for Goods and Services 
OOHlOO-OOO-347·6Q.-()(){)() Normandv Pk - Pool Use Fee (annual) SO.OO $0.00 $25,000.00 $0.00 

Totlll Charles for Goods and Services SO.oo $0.00 $25,000.00 SO.OO 

Miscellaneous Revenues 
001-000-000-361-11-00-00 Investment Interest $1,702.21 $5,750.75 SO·oo SO.OO 
001-000-000-367-00-00-01 Contributions/Donations I to SCholarstilps) SO.oo $103.00 SO.oo SO.OO 
OOl -OOO-OQO.369-81-OO-OO Clsh Over/Shorts SO.OO $0.00 SO·OO SO.OO 
OOl ..Q()().{)()()-369-81-<XH)2 Mise Revenue · (detail below) $101.57 $21,140.30 $0.00 $0.00 

001-000-000-369--81-00-03 MRP Casto Deposits $1,159.25 $17,710.50 $0.00 SO.OO 
OOl-OQO-OO().369-81-00-04 MRP Credit Card Deposits and Refunds (567S.03) $23,009.43 $0.00 SO.OO 
001-000-000-369-81-00-05 Reimbursements (Fitness Specialists) $42.00 $84.00 SO.OO SO.OO 

Total Revenue $Z,327.00 $67,797.98 $0.00 $0.00 

Capital Projects/Reserve 
30 1-()()().()()(). 3 9 7-01).()().(J() Transfer f rom General Fund - OplCal SO.OO SO.OO $175,000.00 $175,000.00 
001 -Q)()..()()().. 3 9 7-01).()().(J() Transfer from ClIpital Projects Fund SO.OO $0.00 SO.OO $0.00 

Total Capital Pro}eet$/R6e1'Ye $0.00 $0.00 $175,000.00 $175.000.00 

Grand Total Revenue $48,211 .14 $131 ,548.83 $ 200,000.00 $68,451.17 





1 

DES MOINES POOL METROPOLITAN PARK DISTRICT 

Date: Friday, April 17, 2020 
To: District Board Commissioners 
From: Scott Deschenes, District General Manager 
Subject: March 13,2020 to April 10, 2020 District General Manager Report 

Week Ending March 13,2020 

Please see weekly report below and attached WC IA report documents. 

BOARD MEETING UPDATE 
The board meeting for Tuesday is a go with all five board me mbers being avai lable. Each ofyoll should have received 
an agenda. Things may change, so if you become ill or feel that you might be contagious, please call us to inform us 
that you will be participating remotely. I have a conference call number available in case there is more than one 
commiss ioner. Lfyou have an issue, please call me on Monday or Tuesday, if you need to call in. 

CORONAVIRUS 
As you were notified, we have cancelled swim lessons, water exercise, rentals and open swims for now. See 
message below . http://createsend.com/tld-
2DD5B3D2CCOADI2E2540EF23F30FEDED?lbcl id~IwARlwFMrhNyhR7HvGOzwPuDKwrYmAicOj

dP3R7cXVBdtg5FmrM Ep7f51iw 

We made this decision after attending the WRPA aquatics group and looking at what other local pools were 
doing. Also, the YMCA's and private agencies with pools are open. 

Other pools were allowing their swim teams to practice, even some that were shuning down to the public. 

Staffis constantly cleaning the facility, and managers/lead staff have been instructed to send ill staff home. 
We also have instructed staff that if they even have any of the symptoms to stay away from work. I 
personally have been out of the office this week. 

For patrons, we have posted posters from the health department on the virus, vulnerable adults and social 
distancing. 

Staff is continually monitoring the health departments and will make changes if needed. 

We have updated the website, social media and sent out an emai l blast that was opened by over 500 people. 

INCIDENT AT POOL (From Dominic) 
I briefly discussed this over the phone with Scott but wanted to send a little update since the patron in the 
incident is a regular lap swimmer. 

Around 12:15 today. we had a pool patron walk onto the pool deck from the women's locker room after 
getting dressed to leave. callout for help and collapse. Quentin activated the EAP and I responded to the 
pool deck. I found the patron unresponsive to my voice in a recovery position having tremors with her eyes 
closed and labored breathing. I immediately called 911 and supported her head. As EMS arrived, the patron 

so Activity 2020041 S[4311C :\U5efS\linda'AppDatallocal\Packagesl(J1iCroSOft_windowscornmunica~oos.app$_8wekyb3d8bbwe\locaIStatl!\files\S0\5\Attachments\SO 
Activity 202(lGoIl 5{431J-doex 



2 

was able to respond to their inquiries. Her vitals were nonnal and EMS left once her mom was on the way. I 
sat with the patron until her mom arrived to monitor her condition. Her mom drove her home and left her 
car here to return for later and said that in the fu ture, she will be accompanied by a fami ly member anytime 
she swims. 

The patron has a condition called POTS and resulted in symptoms similar to a grand mal seizure but is not. 
One of the EMS responders said that this is the first time he has seen this condition in his 25 years of 
service. Here is an article about the condition: https:llmyheart.netlpots-syndrome/ 

The staff handled the situation extremely well and were thanked for their prompt response to the situation. I 
debriefed with the staff on duty and aJl are fit to continue in all capacities of their positions (sometimes 
traumatic experiences can have psychological effects on responders that would make them ineffective at 
lifeguarding). 

FIRE INSPECTION 
The Fire Marshall inspected the pool this week. We passed with flying colors. 

TOWING 
Staff towed a carthat was left atthe pool for a couple of days. The car had a notice placed on it the day before, but the 
notice was still there. Signage is clearly posted about towing throughout the parking lot. This was a good dry run for 
the potential Spring Baseball season. 

WClA RISK MA.,'IAGEMENT AUDIT 
Instead of presenting the WCIA Audit at our Tuesday board meeting, 1 have anached the information to th is email. 
Eric is going to a risk management forum this summer, DominiclLauryne are taking his AFO and 1 will recei ve my 
CPRP, so we will be done by the end of summer with all of our requirements. 

RESEARCH 

• Managing Your Agency's Response to the Coronavirus- http://mrsc.org/Home/Stay-Informed/MRSC
Insight/March-2020/Managing-Your-Agency-s-Response-to-the-Coronavirus.aspx 

• Washington DOH Coronavirus Page - https:Uwww.doh,wa.gov/Emergencies!Coronavirus 

• King County/Seattle DOH Coronavirus Page - https:ljpublichealthinside r.com!2020/03!11/new-limits
o n-Iarge-gat heri ngs-other-emergency-strategies-to-slow-the-spread·of-covid-19! 

Week Ending March 20, 2020 

CLOSURE UPDATE 
We are looking into a potential fix for the heat exchanger. We completed a temporary fix on the unit, but 
fee l it is important to see if we can get it repaired during the closure. We are looking into seeing ifit is 
poss ibility. The repair would be around $20k. 

Dominic has set the temperature and chemical levels of the pool to optimize energy efficiency and chemical 
usage. The pool is covered, and the facility is shutdown to only essential staffing. He is checking the pool 
daily. 

Lauryne is working on schedule for week of March 30, but this is dependent on a potential state-mandated 
lockdown. 

MACMILLER 

SD Activity 202004151"31)C:\UserslLindalAppOata\Loeal\Packages\microsot\.wino:kM-tocommunicationsapp$_8wekyb3I:I80bwe\l0C8ISUitll\FiIe$\$0\5'A1laChments\SO 
Activity 20200415{431].docx 



MacMilier was out completing boiler and HV AC maintenance on Wednesday. This is part of our annual 
maintenance contract and essential with the age of the equipment. 

EMAIL ON CLOSURE PROJECTS 
We are working on updating the li st of closure projects for next week. This depends on if our state will be 
on lockdown and what those rules will be. Any workers will be checked before working and social 
distancing will be required of all staff. 

PASS HOLDERS AUTO DRAFTS 

3 

We placed all auto-dra fts on hold until after we re-open. Auto-drafts are annual payments that arc broken 
down into monthly payments for facility use and water exercise passes. We will add time on all passes, once 
we re-open. 

UNEMPLOYMENT INFORMATION 
Dominic and Lauryne have sent all staff an email with a link to unemployment information. 

SWIM LESSON CREDITS AND REFUNDS 
Lauryne and staff called swim lesson patrons and processed credits and refunds on Wednesday and 
Thursday. They will continue to call people today. 

WEBINAR ON FISCAL IMP ACT OF CORONA VIRUS 
I am signed up for a free webinar on March 26 for the fmancial impacts of the coronavirus. 

As the COVID-19 pandemic worsens, business activity rapidly dwindles, and staff members find themselves 
working from home, local finance officials and elected officials must think about the financial impacts to their 
agencies as well as local businesses and residents. 

MRSC is offering a free webinar on Thursday, March 26 from 11 AM-12 PM to discuss some of the fiscal and 
operational issues officials should conSider, including continuity of operations, impacts to agency revenues, 
impacts to local economic development, and opportunities for fiscal ''first aid." 

REMOTE WORK 
Staff are providing daily check-ins on their work and projects. 

EZCONNECT 
We di scovered that by hooking up the EZ Conncect for the Becsys System that it could create a hole in our 
internet security. Due to this issue, we have decided to put the project on hold until the EZ Connect product 
can provide better security. 

RESEARCH 
• Fiscal Issues During Corona Vi rus Outbreak -http://mrsc.org!Home!Stay-lnformed/MRSC

Ins igh t IM arch -2 02 O/Fisca I-I ssu es-O uri n g-Coron avi ru s-Out b re a k. a spx 

• Good (long) Article on Why Acting on Coronavirus is Important -
https:l!medium.eom!@tomaspueyo/coronavirus-act-today-or-people-will-die-f4d3d9cd99ca 

• Ca lifornia Lockdown Breakdown (May be here soon) -
h ttps :/Iwww.mereurynews.com/2 0 2 0/03/2 0/ coro n av j ru s· lockd own -i n-ca lifo rn i a-w h at· are· th e· 
rules/ 

• Six Benefits of Adult Swim lessons -https:!lswimrvablog.wordpress,com/2017/10!02!six·benefits
of-taking-adult-swim-Iessonsl 

so Activity 20200415{431 )C:\Usef$\lindalAppDatalJ..ocal\PackageslmicrosoItwindowscommunicationsapps_8wekyb3d8~\L()(:aIState\Files\SO\S'Attach.-..ts\sD 
Activity 20200415{431J.dOC:lI 



• NRPA Resource Page on Coronavirus -https:l!www.nrpa.org/our·work/Three-Piliars/health

well n essl co fa n avi rus-d ise a se-20 19/ 

Week Endine. March 27,2020 

CLOSURE UPDATE 
As you know, a stay-at-home order was issued by the governor on Monday night. This order will run through April 
30th• Although this does not affect us being closed, we will have to hold off on our closure-related projects. 

First, we will not need to have a specia l meeting in late-March or early-April due to the fact that only essential staff 
are able to be at the faci lity. This is only Dominic and Lauryne at this time. I also produced an essential employee 
letter that is for Linda, Dominic, Lauryne and myself in case they are stopped. All other employees are off. We are 
continuing to check voicernail and email communications. 

4 

Second, Linda is working on fmalizing digital signatures. This will a llow less face-to-face contact and save people 
from un-needed trips to the office . Each of you should have received an emai l from her on your capabilities for 
scanning. Please see her email for more information. The only board member we have heard back from at this time is 
Shane. Staff is only making trips to the pool to check on facility or pick up bi lling, checks and invoices, and to 
process payroll . Luckily, we have set some remote processes that should cut down on trips for all staff. 

Third, we had a virtual meeting with Microsoft Teams, which is part of our Office package, on Wednesday. We are 
going to meet t\vice a week starting next week. 

Fourth, it was asked in email by one of the board members on what we have done to the pooL The natatorium water 
and air temperature were turned down and the pool was covered the day we closed. Domin ic lowered the chlorine 
leve l in the pool to save on chemical costs. 

Fifth, we are using the data and building processes for potential emergency management plans for the future. This 
shou ld help the district with future emergency situations. 

If there are any other updates, we wi ll include it in future reports. 

GOVERNOR OPMA & PRA UPDATE 
On Monday, March 24, the governor passed proclamations to clarify processes during the Stay Safe, Stay Home 
Order, which incl udes no in-person board meeti ngs. See link below. 

https:llwww.govemor.wa.gov/ncws-medialinslee-signs~additional~measures ~help-miligate-covid-impacts 

MRSC Infonnation: Below is a li nk to MRSC's interpretation on implementing these recommendations. 
http://mrsc.orgIHomc/Stay-InformedIMRSC-InsightlMarch-2020/Govemor-Issues-Proclamation 20-
28.aspx 

We wi ll send an email out about videoconferencing as we get closer to the April 2 1 st meeting. 

Also, we have posted a notice of this notification on OUf governance page, and will update it with further 
information. 

MRSC FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS ON CORONA VIRUS 
Full-time staff participated in the Financial Lmpi ications on COTonav irus. We have implemented remote working and 
e lectronic signatures that meet what they presented . 

so AdMty 20200415[.31 JC:\User.\U'ldaIAppQata\LoCaflPackageSVnicmsoIl windowscornmt.ricws. 8wekyb3d8bbwe\loca!Stale\FiIes\SO\SV\ttachmenb\SD 
ActIVity 2021XM 1 S(4311.docJo:: 



l1ley also posted an updated webpage for govemment. .. hnp://rnrsc.orglIlorne!Explore-Topics/Public
Safetv/Emergency-Services/Public-Health-Emergencies/Coronavirus-COVI 0 -19-F AOs.aspx 

UNEMPLOYMENTIFMLAISICK LEAVE 
Lauryne and Linda are working with staff on Unemployment and FMLA updates due to the Coronavirus. 
https:llwww.dol.gov/agcncies/whd/frnla/pandcmic 

5 

They are also notifying each one about the amount of accrued sick leave. 

CREDITS AND REFUNDS 
Staff continued to process refunds and credits. They have attempted to contact all people. All credits and refunds will 
be processed by the end of the week. 

WRPA MEMBERSHIP 
Just a heads up that we updated the WRPA membership to include current board and staff. You may start receiving 
cmai ls from the organization. 

GOVERNANCE WEBSITE 
I noticed that some of the email contacts that were listed on the Governance page were old, so I have updated them. 
You may receive more emails than before. 

PHONE TREE 
We setup a phone tree behyeen staff to keep everyone in contact. We are hoping this will help with better 
communication and to ensure we are properly communicating with all staff. 

PEACHJAR 
I got returns for our ads that we had setup on Peach Jar. We have credits that we can use when we reopen. This saved 
us $400 + tax. 

KING COUNTY FINANCE 
King County Finance is only processing vouchers once a week. Linda is working to adjust to this process, but it still 
may affect payroll. Each of you will have your stipend mailed until this is over. 

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 
In our latest staff meeti ng, we talked about learning from this situation. Although we have comparable EAPs 
(Emergency Action Plans) to most other pools, we feel it would be good to use this siruation to better plan for future 
outbreak (or similar situations) response with additional policies and procedures . 

OFFICE 365 
I went in and cleaned up some data on the office 365 accounts. Each of you has an Office 365 account. If you need 
help getting it set up, notify me, and r will give you your password and email. There are two ways you can use the 
Office 365 Suite (which includes Outlook, Word, Excel and other products), you can either login to use the product 
online, or you can download the product to your computer, phone or tablet. Again, email or call me aI253.245.3810 if 
you need assistance. 

Note-you can utilize this license on up to 5 devices. See below for more info. 
Imps:1 Is uppol1. office. com! en-us! al1ic1 elvideo-what -is-office-365 -84 7 c.f12 -25 89-4 5 2c-8.ca-1 c00979 7 6 78b 

AQUATIC COORDINATOR'S NEW EMAIL 
Lauryne's new email is lauryne .newmanfaJdesmoinesoool.org. 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

so Activity 20200415{431 )C:\Usen;\lInda'AppOata\locallPackages\mlcroson..wllIdowsIXmmunicationsapps_8wekyb3tI8bbwe\LocaIState\Files\SO\5\Attachmems\SO 
Activity ~15(431 1·docx 



Linda and I are both signed up for MRSC's fmancial workshop, April 6-10, and we have started working on the 
report. The report is due to the state by May 3 1st

, We will present it at our next regular board meeting. 

RESEARCH 
• King County Covid Cases by Municipality - https:l!www.federalwaymirror.com!news/king-county

re lea ses-b rea kd own-d ata-of -covid -19-(a ses-
deaths!?fbclid-lwAR2xW6ecGs xfOTy42pS3ggingNltlKWYgrKYgwOXxiEZJ8pYKjNa6 RS6s 

• MIT-We're No Going Back to Normal - https:!lwww.technologyreview.com!s/615370!coronavirus
pa n dem ie-so cia \-d ist a nc i n g-18-ma nth sl? 

• Coronavirus Response Resou rce Guide for l ocal l eaders -
https:/1 www.governiog.com/n owL Co ra n avi rus-Respo n se-R eso u rces-G u ide-fo r -Gave rn m e"t
leaders.htm! 

• WHO: Safety of Pools - https:/lwww.aguaticsintl.com!facilities!maintenance!world-health
organization-says-treated-water-safe-from-coronavirus 0 

• New King County Covid 19 Dashboa rd - https:llwww.kingcounty.gov/depts/health!communicable
diseases/disease-controllnovel-coronavirus!data-dashboard.aspx 

Week Ending April 2, 2020 

CLOSURE 
The Stay Home, Stay Hea lthy order is set to expire on Wednesday, April 8th

• We are awaiting an extension by the 
governor and will update you with how this affects us. 
https:/lkomonews.com/ncws/coronaviruslinslee-says-its-highIy~likely-states-stay-home-order-will-bc

extended 

RE-OPENING SAFETY 
We are exploring safety barriers, phys ical/social distancing and sign-in options when we re-open to ensure the safety 
of our patrons and staff. 

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT PLANMNG 
We are using this situation to develop better emergency management planning. We are working on Continuity of 
Operations Planning (COOP)JContinuity of Government (COG) and Telecommuting Policies and Processes along 
with other research. 

CREDITS AND REFUNDS 
We finally wrapped up credits and refunds. We did have some families that elected to g ive their credit towards swim 
scholarships.. 

PHONES FORWARDED 
We were havi ng Dominic and Linda check messages as they went in to check equipment (Dominic) and the mail 
(Linda) to ensure there are no major breakdowns and bills and payroll are being completed timely. Linda has 
forwarded both phones to my GoogJe Voice Account, so we can be more responsive. 

FINANCIAL REPORT WORKSHOP 
Just a heads up that Linda and I will be participating in a workshop on the Financial Report Workshop. It will be 
Monday through Friday (April 6-10), 10am-Noon (webinar). The financ ial report will be due on May 29th. We arc 
working on the report and wi ll have a draft at our next regular board meeting. 

NATIONAL WATER SAFETY CONFERENCE 

so ActMty 2020041 S[4311C:\u~lLindaV\ppDa\a\Locar.packagesVnlcrosoft.wI~tiOnsapps Sweqb3dBl::II::IwelLocaIState\FIIes\S()\5IAItadlmer1ts\SO 
ActMty 20200.&15{. 311·docx -

6 



7 

Lauryne and Dominic will be attending the National Water Safety Conference in Fort Worth, Texas virtually, April 6-
9. The conference will be completely on line. WCIA is also paying for her to attend . Below is the agenda fo r the 
conference. 
http://www.cvent.comlevents/2020-national-water-safctv-conference-online/agenda-
06fcea39d73249f2b6c331 e 19b6d9440.aspx 

LIFEGUARD CLASS 
We cancelled our LifcEuard CC"rtifi~atiQn CQUr~w lichQuu!tid for next wuGk.. The class will be re~cheduled when we re
open. Lauryne is calling participants . 

AQUATIC FACILITY OPERATOR COURSE 
The Aquatic Fac ili ty Operdto r Course that Dominic and Lauryne were going to take was canceled. Dominic will be 

taking a CPO (Certified Pool Operator) course that is also recognized. The course will be covered by WClA. Legally, 
we are required to have two people on staff with an AFO/CPO certification. 1 am the other staff member with this 
certification. besides Dominic. 

HOUSE BILL 2588 
There was House Bil12S88 that effects special purpose districts that do not provide annual financial repons nor 
audjts. We have submitted to both. so this law should not affect us. See link for more information. 
https:l!www.king5.com/article/newslinvestigations/gov-inslce-signs-bill-targeting-trouhled-special-purpose
taxing-districts/281-de9f7fe9-c865-44ec-b 198-42b 13c566441 

PROPERTY TAX DELAY 
King County has delayed the deadline for property tax payments to be June 151. This means our property tax revenues 
first drnws will be pushed kmck:. We have enough money in reserves that this should not be an immcdialc issut:. 
hum;:/IWWVo1.kingcountv.gov/depts/finance-busincss-operationsltrcasury/propeny-ta:s.,aspx 

MIDDLE SCHOOL PROGRAM CURRICULUM 
Lauryne is working with one of our staff, Natalie who is a certified teacher on the middle school swim 
program for the Fall. 

AQUATICS MANAGER REPORT 
Dominic is working on hi s report for the nex t regular board meeting. 

RESEARCH 
• Aquatics During COVID-19 (Note-some states have less stringent closures)-

https :!/www.aquaticsintl .com/f a ci I it i esl co ronavi ru s-th rows-a9 u atics-se a so n -ioto-9 u estio n 0 

• Aquatics During the Age of Coronavirus - https:!/www.aguaticsintl.com/facilities!management· 
operators/ag uatics-d uring-the-age-of-coronavi rus 0 

• Italy's Outbreak is Slowing, So What Happens Next - https:!/finance.yahoo,com/news!italys·outbreak· 
slowing.happens-nelct-060022780.html 

• How Cities Can Reopen After the Pandemic - https:/Iwww.brooklngs.edu/blog/the
avenue12020/03124/how-our-cities-can·reopen-after-the-covid.19-pandemic! 

• PRA and 3rd Party Notice During Emergencies - http://mrsc.org/Home/Stay-lnformed!MRSC
Ins igh tIM arch· 2 020/Th e-P RA-and-Th i rd -P a rty-N ot i ce-Du ri ng-Emerge n c i es. aspx 

• Parks and Social Distancing Around the country - https:!lwww.efficientgov.com/ coronavirus-covid-
19/articles/covid·19-local-parks-departments-are-on-the-front-lines-of-soclal-distancing
enforcement-
WXBROC9J17MyXfFBI?utm source=EfficientGov+SafeGov+Newsletter&utm campaign=50836f82e 



d-EMAll CAMPAIGN 2020 04 01 09 35&utm medium=emai l&utm term=O dae70993c3-
50836f82ed-60728595 

Week Endiol: April 10, 2020 

BOARD MEETING 
I will be contacting each of you on setting up video conferencing for the Apri12 1 S ( meeting. I will send out 
an email on Tuesday, April 14 with this infonnation. 

We wi lt be using a product called Goto Meeting (https://www.gotomeeting.com/meeling/pricing). All you 
will need is an internet browser to log-in on and/or a microphone or phone to listen and talk on. We looked 
at different software and this was the best option to also include the 1-800 number. 

Below is the AGO's paper on public meetings during Proclamation 20-28. 
https:llagportaJ-

8 

s3bucket.s3.amazonaws.comluploadedfiles/llome/About the Office/Open Government/Open Government 
TraininWAGO%200PMA %20Guidance%20Coronavirus%20Updated%20March%2026%202020.pdf 

STAFF IN-SERVICES 
The pool staff is planning an in-service to go over a sexual harassment video and stay in contact with our 
staff during the break. There will be two separate trainings: one for managers and supervisors and one for 
employees. The managers and supervisors have their training scheduled for Monday at 2pm. 

WCIA (INSURANCE) ON-LINE ACADEMY 
I updated the WCIA Online Academy to include all staff and board members. WClA is our insurance 
company. The academy has a number of trainings that you can take including board specific options. Most 
of the courses are lO-minutes to an hour in length. Each of you should have an email that you can access the 
trainings. Click link below to view the portal. hltps:llwww.localgovu.comlwcial 

EMAlL NOTIFICATION 
This week we scnt out an email update that was opened by over 450 people. We included some exercises for 
people to do while out of the pool. It is also posted on social media. 
http://createscnd.comltfd-
C65 F 49E45 71 796892540EF23 F30FEDED?fbc1id~lw AROvOQXnZJg YEaXSov AhgEthEsxk4hznQX v9kEh 
MBOOSnillwicjyV W4KU 

NATIONAL WATER SAFETY CONFERENCE 
The national water safety conference was a great way to re-invigorate our mindset and remember how 
important teaching water safety as a large part of our swim lesson program is. One of the points that was 
driven home often during the conference was educating parents and chi ldren about the dangers inherent 
surrounding any body of water including things you may not think of such as a bucket. They promoted 
children learning to swim at a young age as it' s one of the highest unintentional rates of morbidity for 
children. 

Many segments geared towards stories of families who had lost children and loved ones due to drownings. 
and the statistics behind learning how to swim at an early age. These topics are sometimes hard to watch but 
are a good reminder of why we do what we do and why there is such a passion surrounding water safety. 

so Activity 20200415(4l1)C:lUserslliOOa\AppOatalloeallPackages\miemsoft. wi~lionsapps_ s-kyb3dflbbwe\LocaIState\Files\S0\5\Attachments\SO 
ACtivity 20200415(431J.ckX:X 



9 

There was a significant amount of information regarding COVID-19, how the aquatics world has responded 
and how we will move forward. As a whole the conference had a lot of panel discussions that didn't pertain 
to us, but much of the information was newer to Lauryne and very interesting. 

Another interesting presentation spoke about drains and VGS from a company that does research for 
suction- related injuries. They showed videos of simulations that tested each type of drain and varied the 
GPM on pumps to show if a pump is sucking too much water (higher GPMs) that it can still create problems 
even with a VGB compliant drain. In the United States we are lucky to have this kind of regulation, at 
another drowning prevention conference there was a different presentation about the prevalence of suction
related drownings in other countries. 

All· in all there was a lot of good infonnation. I believe it was all recorded, so if anyone is interested in 
seeing any of the presentations Lauryne or I can get you the recordings. 

FINANCIAL REPORT WEBINAR 
Linda and I participated in the Annual Financial Report webinar. It had some good information, but much of 
it was for cities and counties. AII-in-all, there was some good infonnation that should help us through the 
process this year. 

We are in the process of compiling the report and should have a draft available at our next public meeting. 

Extension - There may be a 30-day extension announced at the end of April. This would extend the 
deadline from May 29, 2020 to around June 28,2020. 

RESEARCH 
• New Federa l Laws that Support Employees During COVID·19 - http://mrsc.org/Home/Stav· 

1 nform ed 1M RSC·I n s ightl Ap ri I· 20 2 O·l/N ew·Fed era I· Laws· S u Po 0 rt· E m p 1 oyees·Du ri n g. th e·COVI. a spx 

• Shore Aquatics (Wi lliam Shore Pool) Construction Update· https://www.sacpa.org/ 

• UW Projections· https:ljwww.seattletimes.com/ seattle·news/ health/ new·uw-analysis·lowers· 
coronavirus·death-projections-and·suggests·hospitalizations-may·have-already-peaked·in
washington I 

When Will Your City Feel the Fiscal Impact of COVID-19 • https:/Iwww.brookings.edu/blog/the
avenue/2020/03/31/when-will-your·city-feel-the-fiscal-impact-of-covid·191 

so Activity 20200415{431 )C:\Users\lJnda\AppOata\locaf\Pad<.ageslmicrosoltwindowsammunicationsaPllS_ 8wekyb3d8bbwe\localStatD\FiIesISOl5lA~\SD 
ActIvIty 2020041 Sf"311.docJ< 





Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 

CALL TO ORDER/ROU CALL 

March 17, 2020 
6:00p.m. 

District Office 

MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING 

President Young called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. Present were Commissioners Croom, Dusenbury, 
Kasnick, and Achziger, and District General Manager Deschenes. District Clerk linda Ray was absent. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Commissioner Kasnick led the flag sa lute. 

ADOPTION/MODIFICATIONS OF AGENDA 

President Young requested changes to the agenda due to COVID-19 as follows: 

• Old Business items will be discussed at a later time 

• New Business items will be covered to indude COVID-19 and pool updates 

• Add 8e. Wenatchee Youth Circus discussion to New Business 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, PROCLAMATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS - None 

PUBLIC COMMENT - None 

CONSENT AGENDA 

Commissioner Kasnick moved to approve. Commissioner Croom 2nd
, Passed 5-0. 

NEW BUSINESS 
a. Corona Virus Update 
District General Manager Deschenes reported that last Sunday evening, Governor Inslee made a proclamation that 

all public and recreational establishments will be closed until at least March 31st
• The District made the decision to 

close Mt. Rainier Pool as of Monday, 3/16, after discussions with Tukwila and that Evergreen was also shutdown. 

Staff was notified via email and a general email was sent to the public. We w ill be offering extensions to anyone 

with a facility use and water exercise pass and credits or refunds for lessons. Each lesson participant family 
affected will be called individually to give them the opportunity to ask questions. We will follow the dictates from 

the State o f Washington on the length of closure. Even after it is deemed safe to re-open, we will limit the number 
of programs offered in order to maintain a safe environment. 

We are being flexible with leave for the staff and if they call out sick, we will not require a doctor's note when they 

return to work as long as they are not symptomatic. The managing staff is working to obta in a digital thermometer 

and will monitor staff upon entering the building. Only lead (essential) staff will be at the facility during the closure 
and will perform a deep clean. They w ill also re-organize storage to prepare for surplussing. 

If we are closed after the first two weeks, we will use the time to perform needed maintenance that was planned 

(or August, thus negating the need to close later this summer. Projects could include ceiling tile replacement, 
refinishing benches, repair grout in the men's showers, update asset management, and deep clean lockers. 

22015 Marine View Drive South, Suite 2B Pes Moines WA 98198 
To enhance our community's quality of life by providing access to and promoting participation in aquatics programs 

The Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Pant District is committed to compliance with both the Washington Law Against Discrimination and the 
Americans with Disabilities Act. The District's regular meeting room has limited access for wheelchairs and other mobility assistive devices. In 
order to accommodate individualS that require the use of such devices, please notify the District at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting to 
allow for relocation to iI more accessible location. Please COfltact Unda Ray, District Clerk, 206.429.3852 to make a request. 



Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 
Meeting Minutes - 03/17/2020 

2 

If an extended closure is necessary, we will call an emergency meeting to discuss additional steps. Closure signage 
has been posted and COVIO-19 signage has been posted in English and Spanish on the facility doors. 

The DGM learned that the Federal Way pool w ill pay all employees through the end of the month; Shorel ine and 
Tukwila will be putting together a fact sheet for their employees. 

Some of our pool staff members are eligible for unemploymentj the Aquatic Manager, Coordinator, and Head 
Guards will be the only ones paid at the present time. The District Clerk was given the opportunity to stay home 
this evening or any other time she does not feel comfortable coming in, but she is flexible and needs access to the 
server in the office to accomplish her tasks. 

DGM Deschenes will email copies of th is presentation to the Board members. This report w ill be on file in the 
office. 

In order to keep some costs down, both the air and water temperature at the pool has been lowered temporarily; 
and the pool covers have been deployed. Our expenses and revenue are stable for the month of March. 

b. Policy/Procedures Review 
In past years, the Board has conducted an annual review of Policies and Procedures. The District Clerk has offered 
the option of providing these via thumb drive in Word format or Board members can review the pdfs on the 
website and send their changes to the District Clerk via email. 

President Young suggested to postpone the review for now unless comprehensive changes are needed to existing 
individual policies. 

c. Wenatchee Youth Circus 
Commissioner Achziger reported that the legacy Foundation will be sponsoring the Wenatchee Youth Circus at the 
Waterland Festival on July 18th and 19th

• Destination Des Moines is the event sponsor with Des Moines legacy 
Foundation as the financial sponsor. The group w ill need shower facilit ies for 75 individuals. He is asking if they 
can use the Mt. Rainier Pool, and if so, the District will be named as their in-kind sponsor. The group would also 
like access to the pool itself which would require lifeguard staffing, and access to the shower/ changing facilities. 

The Board agreed to Commissioner Achziger's proposal. Circus officials will be here March 28 or 29 to discuss 
logistics with Destination Des Moines and the District can confirm with them at that time. 

GENERAL DISCUSSION 

DGM Deschenes reported he had talked to several companies about repair or replacement of the failing caulk in 
the pool floor. He was told by a reputable vendor not to drain the pool to prevent further cracking. There is no 
need to repair the caulking because for now it is watertight. The DGM added that staff are not detecting any water 
loss or dirt seepage. A product called Underwater Magic can be applied to fill the crack for aesthetic purposes. 

President Young asked Board members if they feel another meeting is needed prior to the April regular meeting on 
the 21st and discussed potentia l options for remote meetings. If a special meeting needs to be scheduled to further 
discuss repairs at the pool, this can be scheduled. 

22015 Marine View Driv e South, Suite 28 Des Moines WA 98198 
To enhance our community's quality of life by providing access to and promoting participation in aquatics programs 

The Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District is committed to compliance with both the Washington law Against Di$Crlmination and the 
Americans with Oisabilities Ad. The District's regular meeting room has limited access for wheelchairs and other mob~ity assistive devices. In 
order to accommodate individuals that require the use of such devices. please notify the Olstnct at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting to 
allow for relocation to a more accessible location. Please contact linda Ray, District Clerk, 206.429.3852 to make a request. 



Oes Moines Pool M etropolitan Park Dist rict 
Meeting Minutes - 03/17/2020 

3 

Commissioner Achziger suggested to let the public know that while the pool is closed, maintenance that is normally 

performed in August is being done now to avoid closure in the summer. 

ADJOURNMENT 
With no furthe r business, the meeting was adjou rned at 6:35 pm. 

UPCOMING MEETINGS -
• April 21, 2020, Regular Meeting, 6:00 p.m., District Office 

Respectfully submitted by linda Ray, District Clerk. 

Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District Board of Commissioners 

Commissioner Young Commissioner Dusenbury 

Commissioner Kasnick Commissioner Croom 

Commissioner Achziger linda Ray, District Clerk 

22015 Marine View Drive South, Suite 28 Des Moines WA 98198 
To enhance our community's quality of life by providing access to and promoting participation in aquatics programs 

The Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Parj( District is committed to compliance with both the Washington Law Against Discrimination and the 
Americans with Disabilities Act. The District', regular meeting room has linited access for wheelchairs and othef mobility assistive devices. tn 
order to accommodate individuals that require the use of such devices. please notify the District at least 48 hours in advance of the meetlng to 

anow for relocation to a more accessible location. Please contact linda Ray, District Clef1l, 206.429.3852 to make a request. 





tQ 
King County 

Special District Voucher Approval Document 

Scheduled Payment Date: 03/09/2020 

Total Amount: $16,303 .58 
Control Tot~l: 21 

Payment Method: WARRANT 

District Name: Oes Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 

FlJe Name: AP _DMPOLPRK_APSUPINV_202003061307.21.csv 

Fund #: 170950010 

CONTACT INFORMATION 

Preparer's Name: L ;J /)8 .bi Email Address: linda.ray@ desmoinespool.ofg 

PAYMENT CERTIFICATION 

J(Cv20 

RCW (42.24.080: 

I, the urJdersigned, do hereby certify under penal ty of perjury, Ih~t the materials have bee ... furnished, the services rendered, the labor performed as desuibed, or that an~ advance PiI~ment is due al1d pilyable 
purSU<lnt to iI contract or Is ilvait.,bJe as an option for fuD or Pilrtlill fulfi llment 01 ~ contractual obligation, and that the clalm(s) Is(are) just, due and unpaid obligation agil i n~ the ilbove·named governmental unit, 
that I am iJuthoriled to authentitate and ce" ify to said claim(s). 

Authorhed District Signature!s) for Payment of Claims (Auditing Officer(s) or Board Mem~r(s}) : 

Authorized District Signatl.re 

Aut~orized Dimict Signature 

Authorized District Signature 

SUBMIT SIGNED DOCUMENT TO; 

I(lnll County Accounts Payable 
AttTl; Special Dislrlct~ 
401 Slh Ayen~e, Room 323 
Seattle, WA 98104 

P,int .. d On Frodly. Marcil 6, 2020 1\ 01 : 02 :~2 PM 

Oal4~ 

Date 

Date 

Email: SpeciaIOist.AP@klngcounty.gov 
Fa~: (206) 263-3767 

~/c?2~ 
Dale 

Authorlted Distr ict Signilture Da te 

AuthOtized District SlgTlature Dlle 

KING COUHTY fINANC! USE ONLY: 

8al,1I PllXe,sed By: 

Olt. Procused: 

P. p l ofZ 



UI Special District Voucher Approval Document KC v2.0 

KlngGount, 

Distr ict Name: De$ Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District File Name: AP _OMPOLPRK_AP5UPINV _20200306130211.csv 

RETIREMENT 

RECREATION & PARK 

RENEWAL - 2020 

Printed On Friday, March 6, 2020.t 01:02:32 PM Pagl! 2 of 2 



----t4 Special District Voucher Approval Document KC vB) 

K""c:o..nty 

Sdleduled Payment Da te!: 03/24/2020 
Total Amount: $4,463.31 
Control Total: 9 

Payment Method: WARRANT 

CONTACT INFORMATION 4-
Preparer's Name: L I,/lt}> /l 

PAYMENT CERTIFICATION 

District Name: Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 

File Name: AP _DMPOlPRK_APSUPINV _20200312142527.C$v 

Fund It: 170950010 

Email Address: linda.ray@desmoinespool.org 

RCW (42.24.080) 

I, the unde"ianed, do hereby certify under ~nalt~ of perjury, that the materj~ls tlave tleen furnished, the services rendered, the labor performed as describoed, Of' that any advance payment is due arid payable 
pursu~nt to a contract or Is avilliable as an option lor full or pan~1 fulfi llment of a contractual obligation, and that the claim{s) is(are) just, due lind unpaid obliglltion l18a inst the above-named &overnmcntal Uflit, 
Ihal I am authorized to ilu theotlcate a nd certify to said claim(s). 

Authorized District Signature 

Authorized Olwia Sisnature 

SUBMIT SIGNED DOCUMENlTO: 

King County A(counts Payable 
Attn : Specia l Dis tricts 
401 Sth Avcl'luc, Room 323 
Seallle, WA 98104 

Prin! .. d On lhufld~~, "" .. dlll, 2020 f t02: 2SAl PM 

I"ims (Audifing OlfiCtu($j or Boord Mtmbtf(5Jj: 

3/J7Vo r I 

"'" 
Date 

Oate 

Email: Spe<: ialDi5t.AP@kingcounty.gov 
fu: (206) 263-3767 

3 - 1e.-;;2.0 
Oate 

AuthOrilCd District Signatu re Date 

Authorized District Signature "'" 

KING COUNTY fiNANCE USE OOLY: 

al!en Procesied By: 

DIt! Pfoc!SSltd: 

P'i.1 of 1 



~ Special District Voucher Approval Document kC v2.0 

King County 

OIltfict Name: ~ Moines Pool Metropolitan Park Oinritt Rle Namtl: AP _DMPOLPRK_APSUPIN'I _20200312142527.csv 

' ./ ~OnThUrsdi"',MI«1I11. 2020 .. 102:25:41 PM Pap! 2 of 2 



t4 Special District Voucher Approval Document KCv2.0 

IGng County 

Scheduled Payment Date: 03/24/2020 
TotalAmount: $ 12,489.22 

Control Total: 19 
Payment Method: WARRANT 

CONTACT INFORMATION 

Preparer's Name: l.d tY 1>1 &; 

PAYMENT CERWiCATlON 

District Name: Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 

File Name: AP_ DMPOl PRK_APSUPINV_20200318121806.csv 

Fund II: 170950010 

Email Addre~s: Jinda.ray@desmoinespool.org 

RCW (42.24.0SO) 

I, the UI1derslglled, do hereby certify under penalty of pi!rjury, tlla t the materia l~ have been furnished, the services rendered, the labor performed as described, or that a lW advance payment Is due and payable 
pUr$uant to a contfOCt or is availabje as an Option for ful l or paniai fulfillment of a contractual obligation, and that thl! claim(s) Is(are) Just, due and unpaid obngatlon Bg<tlnst t~e ab<lve-named governmenta l unit, 
thilt I am aut~oriled to aut~entitilte ilnd eenify to said cla imls). 

Authorized i)btri,t Srgn~lil for Payment of Clai'7 (Audit ing Officer's' or tkHIrd Member(sJ) : , - / 

Aut~orized Di,tric\ Signii tu re 

Authoriled Di,trlct Slgn~ture 

Aut~orized District Signature 

SUBMIT SIGN ED DOCUMENT TO: 

King County Accounts Payable 
Attn: Special Dhtricts 

4015th Avenue, Room 323 
seattle, WA 9g104 

Dille 

Date 

Date 

Email: SpeciaIOist.AP@kingcounly.gov 
Fa~: (206) 263-3767 

Printed On Wed~e!d~y. M~r~h 18. 2020 I t 12:18:24 ~M 

'-...J V'Ji.. uthorlzed District Sitnature 
EfB/zv 

Date 

Authoriled DistrictSignalure Oate 

AuthorIzed District Signature Date 

I(lNG COU NlYFIJIIANCE US!: ON LY, 

Bnell Proce55ed By: 

Date Procesled: 

Pa&etof2 



U1 Special District Voucher Approval Document 1«( \12.0 

KIogCounty 

Di$lrlct Nam t: ~ Moines Pool Metropolitan Park Oist rict File Name: AP _OMPOLPRK_APSUPINV_202003 18121806.csv 

Printed On Wednot,(I,y. Mardi 18,2020 at 12:18:H PM PI~2of2 



ELECTRONIC P AYMENT REQUEST F ORM 

Payment Settlement Date Mar 30, 2020 -
PAYME~ INFORMATION 

('ACH Credit Pay Code (BENXX, GENXX. PAYXX) 

r Book Transfers (Last 4 digits of the account) From To 

Line Explar\atlonfDescriptlon Fund Project 
(~ dlgi\i) (7 diglta) 

1 Heartland Payroll PE 3/3112020 170950010 

2 , 
4 

5 

6 

PAYEE INFORMATION 

Company I 1 Addre" 1 
BANK INFORMATION FOR WIRE PAYMENTS 

Bank Name 1 

Bank Routing # I I Bank Account # I 
CONTACT INFORMATION Typed or Printed 

Contact Name ILinda Ray 

Email !linda.raY@desmoinespool.org 

~ 
King County 

(' ACH Debit Pay Code (COLXX) 

{Wire Repetitive Wire Code 

Department ()f Executive Services 
Finance &. Business Operations Division 
ADM-ES-0600 
500 4th Ave 
Seattle, WA 98104 
Eman ; cash.management@kingcountv.gov 
Tel: 206-263-2818 or 206-263-2737 

(i Automatic Withdraw! 

Cost Center Account ",,' Future Amount 
(8 digiti) (5dig lta) (7~1:I) (5 dig") 

24219 00000 24,767.43 

O['()IJO 

00000 

00000 

00000 

O~Jr. 

Tota $24,767.43 

1 City 1 1 Stale 0 Zip 1 

I Name on Bank Account 1 

1 City 1 1 State 1 

I Organization IDes Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 

1 Phone # 1206-429-3852 1 Ext! 1 Fax # IN/A 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 
AUTHORIZA TION CertifICation for Payment (By Authorized Signer) RCW 42.24.080 

I, the undersIgned, do hereby certify under penalty of perJury, that the payment IS due and payable and that the payment IS just, due and unpaId obligatIOn, and 
that I am authorize1to .uthe~tiC~yment. 

Signature ~ Title Commissioner Date Mar 18. 2020 

Print Name Eric Kasnick Phone #206-429-3852 Email eric.kasn icl(~desmolnespoo l.org 

So 3/18/0> 
Page 1 of2 080712 





E LECTRONIC P AYMENT R EQUEST F ORM 

Payment Settlement Date Mar 13, 2020 

PAYMENT INFORMATION 

(" ACH Credit Pay Code (BENXX. GENXX. PAYXX) 

r Book Transfers (l ast 4 digits o f the account) From To 

Line Explanation/Description FUrld Project 
(a digiti) (1 cligita) 

1 Heartland Payroll PE 3110/2020 170950010 

2 

3 , 
5 

• 
PAYEE INFORMATION 

Company I I Address I 
BANK INFORMATION FOR WIRE PAYMENTS 

Bank Name I 
Bank Routing # I I Bank. Account # I 
CONTACT INFORMATION Typed or Printed 

Contact Name lUnda Ray 
! 
Email IlInda. raY@deSmOlnesPooI.org 

W 
KingCoooty 

(' ACH Debit Pay Code (COLXX) 

(' Wire Repetitive Wire Code 

Department of Executive Serv ices 
Flnllnce & Business Operations Division 
AOM-ES-0600 
500 4th Ave 
Seattle, WA 98104 
EmaH: c<lsh .managementClldngCOUrl ty.gov 
Tel: 206-263-2818 or 206-263-2737 - -" --- --- ----- -- - -- --- - -

(i' Automatic Withdraw! 

COBt Center Account Ba", Future Amount 
(6 dlgils) (5 digital (J dfgm.) (5 diQ/tfo) 

24219 00000 21 .384.78 

00000 

00C00 
000;)0 

OC'OOO 

Tota $21 .384 .78 

I City I I Slale 0 Zip 1 

! Name on Bank Account I 
I City I I Slale 1 

I Organization IDes Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 

I Phone _1206-429-3852 I Ex' I I Fax " IN/A 

AUTHORIZATION Certification for Payment (By Authorized Signer) RCW 42.24.080 

I. the undersigned, do hereby cer1ify under penalty of pe~ury. that the paymenl is due and payable and that the payment is just, due and unpaid obligation, and 

Ihall am aUlhOriZC'he,nt;1=rment 

Signature / /Z1.A:/: t::;;l>'J1,(J. Title Commissioner Date Mar 6, 2020 

Print Name Eric Kasnick Phone # 206-429-3852 Email eric-kasnick@desmolnespool .or~ 

I 

I 
I 

I 

Page 1 of 2 oe0712 





Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 

AGENDA ITEMS SUMMARY SHEET 

Agenda Item #: 7a Assigned to: District GM Meeting Date: 04/2112020 

Under~ Business Attachment: Yes 

Subjec\: Resolution 2020-03, Emergency Declaration 

Background/Summary: A Resolution of Emergency Declaration can streamline processes 
such as purchases, expenditures, and implementing contracts. It could also become the 
baseline for potential reimbursement by the state or federal government. Without the 
emeroencv declaration, our aoencv mav not be elioible for funds related to the emeroencv. 

I Fiscal 1m pac\: Not known at this time. 

Proposed Motion: I move to approve Resolution 2020-03, Emergency Declaration in response 
to the COVID-19 Pandemic. 

Reviewed by Legal Counsel: Yes -"X,-- No Date: 04107/2020 

Two Touch Rule: -,E""m~e::-rg~e;;;n",c,,,yL-_ __ Committee Review 
-:O",4;,;/2~1;-;/~20~2:;0;-_ _ _ First Board Meeting (Informational) 
-,0,-41",2=-1,,1=-20~2~O,-_ _ _ Second Board Meeting (Action) 

Action Taken: Adopted Rejected Postponed _ _ _ _ 

Follow-up Needed: Yes No Reporting Back Date: ____ _ 

Notes: 
Attached : Resolution 2020-03 Emergency Declaration 





DES MOINES POOL METROPOLITAN PARK DISTRICT 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-03 

DECLARATION OF EMERGENCY - COVTD-19 

WHEREAS: On January 31 , 2020, the United States Department of Health and Human Services 
Secretary Alex Azardeclared a public health emergency for COVID-19, beginning on January 27, 
2020; and 

WHEREAS: On February 29, 2020 Governor Jay Inslee issued Proclamation 20-05 Declaring a 
State of Emergency in all counties of the State of Washington to address the impacts of COVID
\9; 

WHEREAS: On March 1, 2020 King County Executive Dow Constantine Declared a State of 
Emergency in King County to address the impacts ofCOVID-19; 

WHEREAS: The cities served by Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District have fonnally 
declared states of emergency within Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District to address Covid-
19; 

WHEREAS: On March 13, 2020 President Donald Trump Declared a National Emergency 
relating to COVID-19; 

WHEREAS: The Washington Slate and King County outbreak ofCOVID-19 and the effeclS of its 
extreme risk of person-to-person transmission throughout the County and Washinb>10n State 
significantly impacts the life and health of our customers and District employees and constitutes a 
public emergency that affects life, health, and property; 

WHEREAS: The Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District Board of Commissioners has 
determined that the impacts of Covid- 19 on the District its customers and employees requires that 
the Board declare a state of emergency; and, 

WHEREAS: The Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District Board of Commissioners has 
determined that in order to address the emergency, the District General Manager or designee 
requires the flexibility to make procurement, staffing and other decisions that may exceed the prior 
delegated authority of the General Manager. 

Resolution: NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOL YEO. that the Board of Commissioners of 
Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District that: 

1. It is hereby declared that there is an emergency due to the COVID- 19 spread in Des Moines 
Pool Metropolitan Park District; 

2. The General Manager or designee should have full authority to take all necessary actions 
to prolect thc Districl's customers and employees during such period as the declared Covid-
19 emergency exists in King County; 

DRAFT



3. Without limiting the foregoing grant of authority, the General Manager or designee is 
specifically authorized to combat such emergency and to protect the health and safety of 
persons and property by taking the following nonexclusive actions without additional 
authorization of the Board of Commissioners and without regard to limits previously 
establishcd by thc Board of Commissioners: 

a. Enter into contracts, incur obligations and make necessary expenditures in excess 
of policy and budgetary limits, 

b. Waive the requirements of competitive bidding when necessary, 

c. Employ temporary workers and make staffing and scheduling decisions as 
necessary. 

d. Open and close public fac ilities to the public as necessary. 

Adoption: ADOPTED at an open public meeting ofthe Board of Commissioners of Des Moines 
Pool Metropolitan Park District on April 2 1, 2020 the following Commissioners being present and 
voting: 

Commissioner 

Commissioner 

Commissioner 

Commissioner 

Commissioner 

2 

DRAFT



 

Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 
 

AGENDA ITEMS SUMMARY SHEET 
 
Agenda Item #: 7b      Assigned to: District GM  Meeting Date: 04/21/2020 

 
Under: Business  Attachment: Yes 

 
Subject: Policy 392, Continuity of Operations Plan (COOP)/Staffing Update 

 
Background/Summary:  

Due to governor’s proclamation 20-25, only essential services are able to go into work. It is 
important that we define what staffing is critical. Below is a description of why a COOP is 
needed? 

Continuity of Operations Plan 

From MRSC: "Continuity of operations" normally refers to the ability of local governments to 
continue the operation of essential government services with minimal disruptions during an 
emergency. As local governments have begun to respond to the COVID-19 emergency, this 
has meant the provision of police, fire, public health and other essential local government 
services. 

However, due to the unique nature of the COVID-19 emergency and its likely duration, other 
types of local government programs and services, including administration, finance, planning, 
personnel, and other similar functions must also find ways to continue their operations 
provided that doing so will be both technically feasible and safe. 

Staffing Update 

All staff except for the staff listed in the COOP Plan are on furlough. We have setup a 
communication system to keep in contact and developed a remote in-service on sexual 
harassment. All furloughed staff has been given information for unemployment and any 
updates we receive. We are processing paperwork for unemployment as quickly as possible. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: Not known at this time. 

 
Proposed Motion: I move to approve Policy 392, Continuance of Operations Plan in response 
to the COVID-19 Pandemic. 
 
Reviewed by Legal Counsel:  Yes X  No   Date: 04/07/2020 

 
Two Touch Rule:  Emergency Committee Review 
  04/21/2020  First Board Meeting (Informational) 
  04/21/2020 Second Board Meeting (Action) 

 
Action Taken:  Adopted   Rejected   Postponed  

 



 

Follow-up Needed:  Yes   No   Reporting Back Date:  
 
Notes:  
See Attached: 

1. See attached Policy 392, Continuity of Operations (COOP) Plan. 
2. MRSC Article on Continuity of Operations.* 
 
 

*http://mrsc.org/Home/Stay-Informed/MRSC-Insight/March-2020/Continuity-of-Operations-During-
COVID-19.aspx 
 



 

Policy 392 C.O.O.P. Plan 
CONTINUITY OF OPERATIONS PLAN 

Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District | April 21, 2020 

  



 2

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
OVERVIEW   
INTRODUCTION 3 
PURPOSE 3 
AUTHORITIES AND REFERENCE 4 
SCOPE AND APPLICABILITY 4  
 
PLANNING  
PLANNING OBJECTIVES 5 
PLANNING ASSUMPTIONS 5 
PLANNING SCENARIOS 6 
 
IMPLEMENTATION  
COOP IMPLEMENTATION 6 
PHASES OF COOP 7 
DEPARTMENT COOP RESPONSIBILITIES 9 
COOP CHART OF ESSENTIAL PERSONNEL 10 
NOTIFICATION 10 
 
ESSENTIAL EMPLOYEES  
ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS 11 
ORDER OF SUCCESSION 13 
ALTERNATE FACILITIES AND TELECOMMUTING 14 
COMMUNICATIONS 15 
VITAL RECORDS AND DATABASES 15 
CRITICAL SYSTEMS AND EQUIPMENT 15 
EXTERNAL CONTACTS 16  
GO-KITS 16 
SHELTER-IN-PLACE 17 
EMPLOYEE SUPPORT 17 
COOP PLAN MAINTENANCE 18 
 
APPENDICES  
APPENDIX A – GO-KITS 19 
APPENDIX B – SHELTER-IN-PLACE SUPPLY KIT 23 
APPENDIX C – EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE 25 
APPENDIX D – COOP TERMS 27 
APPENDIX E – TELECOMMUTING POLICY 30 
 
  



 3

 
 
Introduction 
The Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District “District”, which manages the 
Mount Rainier Pool “Pool” has essential operations that need to be performed or 
rapidly resumed in a disaster or emergency. While the impact of an incident 
cannot be predicted, planning for operations under such conditions may mitigate 
the effects of the disaster or emergency on people, facilities, and services. To that 
end, the district has prepared a Continuity of Operations (COOP)/Continuity of 
Government (COG) Plan (“Plan”) to serve as a guide for sustainment or 
resumption of essential services affected by a disaster. 
 
The District intends to provide the highest level of response and recovery to an 
incident as possible; however, there is no guarantee that the District will have the 
capability or resources to meet the needs of every resident, patron, or business-
partner before, during, or after a disaster or emergency. 
 
This Plan establishes guidance to support District critical functions when a disaster 
or emergency threatens or impacts the Pool’s operations to the point that 
requires changes to the delivery of District services or the relocation of personnel 
or operations. The Plan provides guidance for when the District may need to 
implement COOP activities related to an incident that impacts essential functions, 
roles of staff, facilities, or delivery of services to District residents, patrons, or 
business-partners.  
 
District employees may have identified responsibilities in an emergency that 
requires COOP and/or COG activities to sustain essential District functions. Such 
employees are expected to fill their COOP and/or COG role(s) to the extent 
practicable under the circumstances and consistent with relevant job 
descriptions, District personnel policies and any state or federal government 
directives. 
 
Purpose 
The ability of the District to support essential functions during times of disaster or 
emergency and to provide for the needs of residents, patrons, or business-
partners within the District’s service area is a priority. To facilitate 



 4

implementation of this ability the District has coordinated the development of 
this Plan. 
 
This Plan describes how the District will endeavor to perform essential, critical 
functions during and after a disaster or emergency that disrupts normal District 
operations. This Plan is intended to guide the District during an actual incident; 
however, specific actions will depend on the situation. This Plan serves a 
consolidated location for critical information related to the delivery of essential 
functions and the resources that facilitate services. 
 
Authorities and References 
This Plan has been developed to support implementation of the District: 

 Mount Rainier Operational Plan 
 Chapter 42.14 RCW  

References that have supported the development of this Plan include: 
 Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District Policy and Procedures 

 
Scope and Applicability 
This Plan applies to all District departments and personnel. COOP activities may 
be initiated at any time as determined necessary by the District leadership.  COOP 
activities may be due to a natural, technological, or human-caused disaster or 
emergency; but not limited to these situations. 
 
The scope of this Plan is focused on the critical services that should not be 
disrupted for more than twelve hours following an incident. The intent of this 
document is to provide a framework to support delivery of essential services.  
 
Potential issues include a health crisis, earthquake higher than 4.6,  weather-
related (snow/ice), hazmat, power failure, terrorism or any other incident that 
may require a prolonged response. 
 

  



 5

Planning 
 
Plan Objectives 
The objectives of this COOP Plan are to: 

 facilitate decision-making during COOP activities 
 reduce disruptions to essential functions 
 document the order of succession of critical management positions 
 identify vital facilities, equipment, records, and other assets 
 guide an orderly transition to COOP activities and return to operations 

 
Planning Assumptions 
Assumptions used to support the District’s development of this Plan include but 
are not limited to: 

 The District will follow the directives of City, State and Federal 
government(proclamations). 

 Disasters, emergencies or threatened emergencies can adversely impact 
the District’s ability to continue to support essential functions. 

 When COOP activities are initiated, the District will implement a 
predetermined plan using trained and equipped personnel whenever 
possible. 

 Personnel and resources located outside the area affected by the disaster 
or emergency may or may not be available to support District essential 
functions. 

 Some District services may be limited or suspended to enable the District to 
concentrate on essential functions. 

 The timeline for establishment of some essential functions may exceed 12 
hours of the incident onset. 

 Alternate support or delivery of essential functions may extend beyond the 
response phase of an incident and extend into long-term recovery. 

 District staff may implement telecommuting practices to support delivery 
of essential services. (See Appendix E) 

 Recovery from an incident may result in the decision to not restore certain 
District services, facilities, or positions. 

 Staff members may be unavailable during or after a disaster or emergency 
and thus may be unable to support COOP activities due to childcare, illness 
or other outside issues.  



 6

 It may take days to weeks to reestablish District services and months to 
years to recover from an incident. 
 

 
 
Planning Scenarios 
Any or all scenarios that may result in the injury, death, or inability to account for 
District staff, elected officials, or the public at a District facility should have a plan. 
In addition, any or all scenarios may affect critical systems that the District relies 
on for normal business operations and service delivery. 
 

 
Implementation 
 
COOP Implementation 
The District General Manager or designee, may direct the implementation of 
COOP activities. COOP activities are implemented based on known or anticipated 
threats and emergencies that may occur with or without warning. The District will 
use a phased approach for implementation, whereby essential functions are 
sustained or established early and additional services will follow as needed and 
available. 

 Notice threats or emergencies: There are some threats that may provide 
advance warning that will allow notification of, direction to, and if 
necessary, the relocation of employees. Situations that may provide such 
warning include inclement weather or a threat of violence. 

 No notice threats and emergencies during business hours: Incidents may 
not be preceded by warning, for example earthquakes, fire, or terrorist 
attacks. In these circumstances, employees should follow their emergency 



 7

procedures to stay safe and resolve the issue if possible. COOP activities 
will be initiated, if appropriate, and employees will be provided direction by 
their department leader or the District General Manager. 

 No notice threats and emergencies during non-business hours: Incidents 
may also occur with no warning outside of business hours. In these 
circumstances, COOP activities will be initiated, if appropriate, and 
employees will be notified of any changes to working conditions as soon as 
possible through various communications methods. 

 
Phases of COOP 
The District will use a phased approach to the initiation, management, and 
eventual de-escalation of COOP activities. 
 
Phase 1: Initiation 

 Notification. The General Manager or designee shall inform the Board of 
Commissioners of an incident. The management team will assess the 
situation and determine if COOP activities are necessary. If it is determined 
that COOP activities are necessary the District General Manager, and the 
management team will be notified and directed to respond to a designated 
location. District employees, partners, and the public will be notified of 
COOP activities, as able and appropriate, using any or all communication 
resources available. 

 Initial Actions. The COOP team will meet, in person or via teleconference, 
to determine what COOP activities are necessary and what direction will be 
given to the COOP Team for implementation. The General Manager will 
initiate public messaging and manage media interests. Key COOP staff will 
be notified to initiate COOP activities to support delivery of essential 
services at the primary site or a designated alternate site if necessary. 

 Establish Operations. The COOP Team will inform the Board of 
Commissioners when facilities, systems, or resources are prepared to 
support delivery of essential services. Departments will provide essential 
services to the best of their ability with the capability available. 

 
Phase 2: Alternate Operations 

 Delivery of Essential Functions. The department(s) will deliver essential 
functions using temporary work procedures or from an alternate facility, if 
needed and able based on incident impact and resource availability. 



 8

 Establishment of Communications. The department(s) will establish 
communication internally, to external agencies, and to the public, as able 
and appropriate. 

 Augmentation of Staff. As the situation progresses, additional staff will be 
activated to provide services and functions, as able and/or needed. 

 Development of Plans for a Return to Operations. As soon as feasible, the 
management team will begin planning and preparation of activities to 
return to normal operations based on resources, staffing, and facility 
availability. 

 
Phase 3: Return to Operations 

 Ending Alternate Process. The management team will meet to identify the 
timeline of concluding COOP activities. Based on their decision the team 
will develop guidance for ending alternate operations and returning to a 
non-emergency status at the designated facility. 

 COOP Management Team Conclusion. The COOP management team will 
demobilize the site they have been working from, including the delivery of 
all documentation related to COOP activities performed for critical 
functions. The District General Manager will provide public information 
regarding resumption of services and manage media interest. 

 
The table below highlights the key COOP activities to be accomplished by phase. 
All activities are the responsibility of the management team. Lead until delegated 
to sub teams or staff. 
 
Phase Key COOP Activities 
Phase 1- Initiation  Instruct staff to ready alternate facility, if 

needed. 
 Notify impacted local, regional, and State 

agencies. 
 Activate plans to transfer to alternate facility. 
 Notify agency employees and contractors 

regarding activation of COOP plan and their 
status. 

 Assemble documents/equipment required for 
essential functions at alternate facility. 



 9

 Continue essential functions at regular facility, 
if available, until alternate facility is ready. 

 Activate Facilities and Operations Teams as 
necessary. 

Phase 2 - Alternate 
Operations 

 Provide guidance to staff and information to 
the public. 

 Identify replacements for missing personnel 
(delegation of authority and orders of 
succession). 

 Commence full execution of operations 
supporting essential functions at the alternate 
facility. 

Phase 3 - 
Return to Operations 

 Supervise return to operations. 
 Demobilize COOP Team site(s). 
 Arrange employee emotional support, if 

needed. 
 Deliver public information of status. 

 
Department COOP Responsibilities 
Each department should have an organizational structure identified to support 
delivery of essential functions. Department activities are unique; however, at a 
minimum department’s should be prepared to: 

 Facilitate department COOP activities; 
 Support activation of alternate facilities, supporting communications, and 

information technology systems; 
 Support COG activities as appropriate; 
 Provide public information content to the District General Manager for 

dissemination; 
 Assess and report situational status for department responsibility; 
 Develop or implement temporary service plans; 
 Coordinate resource support for employees emotional and physical 

wellbeing; and 
 Lead department recovery activities. 

 
 
 
 



 10 

COOP Organizational Chart of Essential Personnel 
 

 
 
All other staff will be only used if necessary to supplement COOP operations. 
 
Notification 
The District recognizes that the COOP activities could be initiated under a variety 
of conditions; therefore, multiple notification systems may be used for 
contacting: COOP Team members, the Board of Commissioners and employees, as 
appropriate to the situation. Systems include but are not limited to telephone 
networks, technology-based mass notification tools or Outlook email. The 
appropriate authorized manager of each department will be responsible for 
making notifications when directed by the policy group to do so. Notification of 
operational changes will be provided to the public through as many available 
communication channels as possible, including but not limited to email 
notification system, social media, the District and Pool phone messages, local 
media, District’s webpage, and postings at District facilities. The District 
recognizes that many people leverage social media for informational updates, 
below is the District’s managed digital media communication accounts 

President of 
Board

Clerk of the 
Board

Board of 
Commissioners

District General 
Manager

District Clerk Aquatics 
Manager

Aquatics 
Coordinator



 11 

that may be used to communicate changes or updates. 
 Email: Campaign Monitor & CivicRec 
 Text: CivicRec 
 Social Media: Facebook and Twitter 
 Website: Main Page Pop-Up  

 
 

Essential Employees 
 
Essential Functions 
The District has identified essential functions and continuity of government 
priorities. The District also identified critical processes, services, systems, and 
equipment necessary to support each essential function, as well as key personnel 
required. 
 
The following table provides a high-level summary of department specific areas of 
essential functions including the Continuity of Government (COG) status and 
Return to Operations (RTO) target for each function. 
 
Staff Member Function Function Description 
Board of 
Commissioners 

Leadership Maintain seat of governance and 
facilitate policy (if needed). 

 Legislation Support incident and COOP 
operations through actions 
and funding allocation. 

 Outreach Liaise with other 
jurisdictions and elected officials 
and staff and connect with the 
public. 

District General 
Manager 

Leadership Provide leadership for the incident, 
the District, and the public. 

 Research Monitor state, federal and local 
outlets for updates, synthesize and 
communicate to staff. 

 Communications Facilitate internal and 



 12 

external messaging including 
website, social media and email 
notification systems. 

 Intergovernmental 
Operations 

Coordinate political official 
involvement. 

 Technology 
Support 

Support access to and use of 
telecom, internet, and computer 
hardware and software. 

 Compliance Enforce compliance with laws, 
contracts, and ADA requirements. 

 Internal 
Recruitment 

Fulfill requests for personnel for 
incident response. 

 Support Backup the District Clerk in case of 
illness or unavailable. 

District Clerk Employee payroll 
and benefits 

Maintain continuity of 
payroll for District employees. 

 Record 
Presentation 

Protect vital records. 

 Manage Money Monitor and track cash 
available for District operations. 

 Purchasing Procure materials and 
professional services for incident 
needs. 

 Support Backup the District General 
Manager in case of illness or 
unavailable. 

Aquatics Manager Safety Assessment Analyze and monitor the status of 
the safety condition of the Pool. 

 Repairs and 
Support 

Fix, mend, and service pool 
equipment. 

 Risk Management Identification, evaluation, 
and mitigation of risk. 

 Support Backup the Aquatics Coordinator in 
case of illness or unavailable. 

Aquatics 
Coordinator 

Workforce 
Management 

Manage safety concerns and 
support and retain 
employees. 



 13 

 Compensation  Manage and maintain pay and 
benefit system. 

 Safety Training Conduct just in time safety training 
for employees and 
volunteers for the incident. 

 Support Backup the Aquatics Manager in 
case of illness or unavailable. 

 
If a member of this team is unable to perform their duties, alternative staff will be 
selected from the organization or contracted to complete work. This could be due 
to illness, family illness or other factors. 
 
Order of Succession 
If key positions are unavailable during an emergency, the District has an 
established Orders of Succession and when appropriate Delegations of Authority 
to support continuation of operations and governance. 
 
The District recognizes the importance of leadership in the delivery of essential 
functions and thus has identified the following Order of Succession, based on 
position, to support operations during and emergency or disaster. 
Department Order of Succession 
Board of Commissioners 1. President 

2. Clerk of the Board 
3. Commissioner selected by Board 

in absence of President or Clerk 
of the Board.* 

District Offices 1. District General Manager 
2. District Clerk 
3. Aquatics Manager 

Pool Operations 1. Aquatics Manager 
2. Aquatics Coordinator 
3. District General Manager 
4. Designee by District General 

Manager 
 
* In the event more than four commissioners are permanently or temporarily 
unavailable to fulfill their statutory duties during an emergency, the following 



 14 

procedures shall be used to appoint temporary interim successors pursuant to 
RCW 42.14.070.  The remaining Board member (or the General Manager in the 
absence of all five commissioners) shall appoint two  (or three) temporary interim 
successor board members to temporarily serve as a Board of three.  The 
temporary interim successors shall serve until such time as two or more regularly 
elected or appointed commissioner are able to perform their duties or until such 
time as the County legislative body appoints sufficient commissioners to allow a 
quorum of the regularly elected or appointed commissioners to conduct business.  
 
Alternate Facilities and Telecommuting 
The District recognizes that normal operations may be disrupted and that there 
may be a need to perform essential functions at alternate locations including 
potential telecommuting.  
 
If relocation is necessary, the District’s management team will perform a site 
evaluation to confirm the facility is safe for use and to identify resources 
necessary to make the site operational for the designated department. 
 
The District will prepare to relocate by informing employees of the need to 
relocate and of their role in the transition.  Once the alternate site is established, 
staffed, and ready for operations, and if appropriate, public messaging will be 
provided via all methods available to inform the community of where and how to 
reach the services of the department. 
 
The District will operate from the alternate location until such a time that the 
original facility is available for reoccupation, or a new location has been identified 
and prepared for operations. Transition to the original or new facility will initiate 
with establishment of the work area, followed by movement of personnel, 
notification of relocation, and implementation of service. 
 
If situations require telecommuting, District staff will work on forwarding phones 
to alternative locations.  

 Pool: The Mount Rainier Pool phone will be checked or forwarded to a 
designated staff member. 

 District Offices: The District Offices phone number will be forwarded to the 
District General Manager or designee. 

 



 15 

Communications 
Communication is a critical capability for government as communication systems 
support connectivity to internal organizations, external partners, critical vendors 
and customers, and the public. To support communications during COOP 
activities, the District has identified primary and alternate communication 
resources to provide as many normal communication methods as possible, based 
on operational status, during a COOP scenario. 
 
Systems may be limited due to infrastructure failures caused by the emergency or 
disaster, thus prioritization of capability may need to occur based on life safety, 
COG requirements, and incident management demands. 
 
The majority of operations desire the ability to use telephone, email, and text 
messaging communication systems.  
 
Vital Records and Databases 
The District has identified vital records and databases which facilitate the 
performance of essential functions. Although most functions can be performed by 
using hard copy forms, the District benefits greatly by having access to electronic 
databases for research and verification purposes. Departments that rely on 
electronic documents and forms are encouraged to produce at least master hard 
copy versions. 
 
Our key databases are mostly cloud-based including Office 365, CivicRec and 
Subitup. The District Clerk and District General Manager have remote access to 
the server. The District’s IT provider, CMIT has access to a digital backup of the 
server in case of the server being damaged or destroyed. 
 
The District Clerk maintains contact information for vendors and contractors 
available to support the restoration of vital records, systems, and processes.  
 
Critical Systems and Equipment 
The District has identified critical systems and equipment necessary to support a 
COOP incident. The primary equipment needed by both departments include 
technology-based solutions such as cell phones, computers, printers, and 
Microsoft Office and department specific operations software programs. 
 



 16 

It is also paramount that the critical systems of the pool be monitored and tested 
throughout any extended closure. This will require the Aquatics Manager (or a 
designee) to make trips to the pool. It is also important that the security of the 
facility be monitored due to the potential hazard of the pool and its equipment. 
 
External Contacts 
The District contracts with a variety of vendors for support and delivery of 
essential functions. The expectation is that contracted vendors will have 
continuity plans to facilitate service delivery to the District. 
 
The District values the partnership and agreements that have been established 
and intends to leverage those relationships as able for the support and delivery of 
essential functions during a COOP incident. 
 
External contacts will be a part of each department’s Go-Kit. 
 
Go-Kits 
Departments are expected to develop and maintain, at least quarterly, a “go-kit” 
comprised of critical documents (electronic and/or hard copy) including forms 
and files, staff rosters and contact information, key partner, customer, and 
vendor contact lists, and appropriate supplies to support initial COOP activities 
and establishment of service delivery from an alternate site. The department go-
kit should be mobile and easily accessible by staff. All management staff should 
know the location of the go-kit, particularly personnel with a COOP department 
assignment. Each Go-Kit will include a thumb drive including department policy 
and procedures, employee handbook, contact list operations manual, employee 
contact list, board of commissioners contact list.  
 
Each employee with a COOP designated role is expected to create a “go-kit” to 
enhance preparedness for responding to an incident. A go-kit should contain 
those items considered essential to supporting operations at an alternate site. 
Each kit may be somewhat unique, but most should include such items as COOP 
checklists, key contact lists (names, phones, addresses, etc.), files specific to 
positions, specialized tools routinely used, and maps of the local area and 
potential alternate sites. 
 



 17 

Recommended go-kit items and a list of personal preparedness items all staff are 
encouraged to keep at their desk can be found in the Appendix of this Plan.  
 
See Appendix A for more information on Go-Kits. 
 
Shelter-in-Place Kit 
Pool management is also responsible for setting up a shelter-in-place kit. If there 
is an emergency, the kit will include emergency food, water and other supplies to 
supplement an emergency prolonged stay at the pool facility. A three-day supply 
of dried food will be kept onsite for up to ten people. 
 
Key staff members will know the location of this equipment. Any equipment that 
is not kept with the kit will have a list of locations of these items.  
 
Click link for a list of shelter-in-place checklist. 
https://www.readyrating.org/DesktopModules/EasyDNNNews/DocumentDownlo
ad.ashx?portalid=1&moduleid=2542&articleid=25&documentid=39 
 
Employee Support 
A situation that requires the implementation of COOP activities can be stressful 
and physically or emotionally upsetting to employees and volunteers. The District 
will endeavor to support and provide the appropriate resources to assist 
personnel with managing crisis stress management. 
 
Resources may include access to an Employee Assistance Program (EAP), formal 
Critical Incident Stress Management (CISM) sessions, on site mental, emotional, 
or spiritual support staff, or referral to professional mental health providers. 
 
  



 18 

COOP Plan Maintenance 
The District intends to maintain a viable COOP capability through the review and 
update of this Plan partnered with training and exercising on COOP activities. 
 
The District’s COOP (management) team will coordinate the maintenance of this 
Plan. 
Activity Task Review 

Frequency 
Parties Involved 

Overall Plan 
Update 

Review entire plan for 
accuracy 
Incorporate lessons 
observed and 
improvement 
adjustments. 
Manage distribution of 
plan updates. 
 

Annually, 
but also 
dependent 
on law 
changes 
and 
incidents 

Management 
Team with board 
approval 

Update Order of 
Succession 

Obtain names of current 
incumbents and 
designated successors. 
Confirm or update 
Delegation of 
Authorities. 
 

As-need 
and at least 
annually 

Management 
Team 

Checklists Update and review 
checklists 
 

As needed Management 
Team 

Orient Board of 
Commissioners 

Brief on Plan, COOP 
concepts, and their 
responsibilities related 
to COOP activities. 

Annually, 
but also 
dependent 
on law 
changes 
and 
incident 
 

Management 
Team with board 
approval 



 19 

Plan and conduct 
COOP activity 
Exercise 

Conduct at least one 
drill, table-top, or 
functional internal 
exercise testing part or 
all COOP activities. 
 

Annually Management 
Team with staff 
support 

 
 
APPENDIX A – GO-KITS 
 
Each Go-Kit is specific to the staff member. Please see the attached 
CONTACT INFORMATION  
Hard copy of employee roster  
Hard copy of employee emergency notification contacts with numbers  
Hard copy list of emotional support resources  
PERSONAL SAFETY ITEMS  
Blankets  
Snacks and water (small but meaningful)  
Flashlight with batteries  
First aid supplies (including OTC medications)  
Comfort kits (tissues, toothbrush, comb, toilet paper)  
OPERATION ITEMS  
Computers with power and network connectors   
Thumb Drive (memory device) with current records/files, resources for 
all positions and functions. 

 

Basic office supplies (pen, paper, tape)  
Hard copy of important documents, contacts, and contracts/MOUs  
Keys for file drawers, facility, secured rooms  

 
Clothes, can opener, fire extinguisher…etc. (all things on chart below) 



 20 

 



 21 
 



 22 

 
 



 23 

APPENDIX B – SHELTER IN PLACE SUPPLY CHECKLIST 
 
Shelter-in-Place Supplies Checklist 

 29 July 2015 
 Author: WebTeam 
 Number of views: 45054 

When an emergency happens at your facility, the first decision to make is 
whether to evacuate or take shelter. If ordered to shelter it is important to have 
sufficient supplies and equipment on-hand to support the needs of staff and 
visitors for periods ranging from several hours to several days. Use this checklist 
to determine if you have the necessary material on hand. 
  

Communication Equipment: 
 Communication devices/smart phones capable of receiving NOAA and news 

local news updates. 
 Cell phones and/or satellite telephones have been tested and their 

limitations noted. 
 There are portable generators on hand with vented exhaust systems that 

can supply power to the shelter during an emergency. 
 There is/are public address system(s) in the shelters. 
 There is/are a cache of office supplies in the shelter, e.g., paper, notepads, 

staplers, tape, whiteboards and markers, etc. 
 There are hard-wired land lines in the shelter area. 

 
 
Emergency Equipment: 

 At least one current copy of the EAP is stored in the shelter. 
 There are battery-powered or hand cranked flashlights, or glow sticks stored 

in the shelter area. 
 Fire extinguishers, blankets, pry-bars (for opening doors that may have been 

damaged or blocked by debris), stretchers and Automated External 
Defibrillator(s) are stored in the emergency shelter. 

 Trash receptacles, trash can liners and ties, a supply of commonly used tools, 
and portable heaters are pre-positioned in the shelter. 

 
 



 24 

First-Aid Supplies including: 
 Adhesive tape and bandages in assorted sizes are on-hand. 
 Safety pins in assorted sizes are in the shelter. 
 There is a supply of latex gloves in the shelter. 
 Scissors and Tweezers are available in the shelter. 
 Antiseptic solutions and antibiotic ointments are in the emergency kit. 
 A supply of moistened towelettes are on-hand. 
 A supply of non-prescription drugs (e.g. aspirin and non-aspirin pain 

relievers, anti-diarrhea medications, antacids, syrups of ipecac, laxatives) are 
available. 

 Petroleum jelly is available in the emergency kit. 
 Eye drops are available. 
 Wooden splints are included in the emergency supply kit. 
 Thermometers are available. 
 Cotton towels are available. 
 Fold up cots are stored in the shelter. 
 There are first aid handbooks in the shelter.    

 
 
Water and Non-Perishable Food: 
There are adequate amounts of food and water for duration of the expected 
event(s) and number of personnel expected to seek shelter. 
      
Sanitary Supplies: 
Sufficient amounts of the following supplies are stored in the shelter: 

 Toilet Paper. 
 Paper towels. 
 Personal hygiene items. 
 Disinfectants. 
 Chlorine bleach. 
 Plastic bags. 
 Portable chemical toilets, when regular toilets are not contained in the 

shelter. 
 Plastic sheeting (preferably, pre-cut to size to cover any windows & doors 

and labeled). 
 Duct tape for sealing cracks around doors and windows. 

 



 25 

APPENDIX C – EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS 
 

 



 26 

 



 27 

APPENDIX D – COOP TERMS 
 
Activation. When COOP activities have been implemented whether in whole or in 
part. 
 
Alternate facility. A location, other than the normal facility, used to carry out 
essential functions in a COOP situation. 
 
Continuity of Operations (COOP). The activities of individual departments and 
their subcomponents to facilitate essential functions throughout an emergency 
and its short-term recovery. 

This includes plans and procedures that: 
 delineate essential functions; 
 specify succession to office and the emergency delegation of 

authority; 
 provide for the safekeeping of vital records and databases; 
 identify alternate operating facilities; 
 provide for communications; 
 support personnel readiness and wellbeing; and 
 validate the COOP capability through training and exercises. 

 
COOP Incident. Any incident that causes the District to perform COOP activities to 
support continuation of essential functions. 
 
Critical data and systems. Information essential to supporting the delivery of 
essential functions. 
 
Critical equipment. Equipment essential to supporting the delivery of essential 
functions. 
 
Delegation of authority. Specifies who is authorized to act on behalf of the 
agency head and other senior management and technical personnel for specific 
purposes. 
 
Departments. The two districts of the Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 
are separated into the District Offices (Administration) and the Mount Rainier 
Pool (Operations). 



 28 

 
Essential functions. Functions that enable the COK to: 

 maintain government status; 
 provide vital services; 
 support the safety and wellbeing of employees, contractors, customers, 

and the general public; and 
 sustain the economic base due to an emergency. 

 
Essential resources. Resources that support the agency's ability to provide 
essential functions. 
 
Go-kit. A kit prepared by, and for, an individual or department who expects to 
deploy to an alternate location during an emergency. The kit contains items 
needed to minimally satisfy personal and professional needs during deployment. 
 
Interagency Agreements. A written agreement entered between agencies that 
require specific goods or services to be furnished or tasks to be accomplished by 
one agency in support of the other. 
 
Interoperable communications. Alternate communications that support the 
capability to perform essential functions, in conjunction with other agencies, until 
full operations can be resumed. 
 
Legal and financial records. Records that are needed to protect the legal and 
financial rights of the District. 
 
Management team. This team consists of the District General Manager, District 
Clerk, Aquatics Manager and Aquatics Coordinator. 
 
Orders of succession. Provisions for the assumption of leadership positions during 
an emergency in the event that any of those leaders are unavailable to execute 
their duties. 
 
Primary facility. The site of normal, day-to-day operations; the location where the 
employee usually goes to work. 
 



 29 

Return to operations (RTO). The process by which the affected agency resumes 
full operations following COOP activities. 
 
Risk analysis. The identification and assessment of hazards. 
 
Virtual offices. A location or environment where an employee performs work 
through the use of portable information technology and communication 
packages. 
 
Vital databases. Information systems needed to support essential functions 
during a COOP situation. 
 
Vital records. Electronic and hardcopy documents, references, and records 
needed to support essential functions during a COOP situation. The two basic 
categories of vital records are emergency operating records and legal and 
financial records. 
 
Information adapted from the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) 
Glossary of Terms. 
 
  



 30 

APPENDIX E – TELECOMMUTING POLICY 

 



 31 

 



 32 

 



 33 

 













Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 

AGENDA ITEMS SUMMARY SHEET 

Agenda Item #: 7 c Assigned to: Dislrict GM Meeting Date: 04/2112020 

Under~ Business Attachment: Yes 

Subject: Policy 272, Telecommuting Policy 

Background/Summary: The district has implemented telecommuting to ensure the continuity 
of local government operations as social distancing and possible shelter-in-place requirements 
during the current Pandemic. 

The attached policy develops a policy and processes that are part of the COOP (Continuity of 
Operations Plan). 

This policy formalizes the process and ensures that it matches the needs of the board's 
oversiQht of the district. 

Fiscal Impact: Not known at this time. 

Proposed Motion: I move to approve (or not to approve) Policy 272 Telecommuting Policy in 
response to the COVID-19 Pandemic. 

Reviewed by Legal Counsel: Yes -,X,,-_ No Date: 0410712020 

Two Touch Rule: Committee Review 
!-- --- First Board Meeting (Informational) 

04121/2020 Second Board Meeting (Action) 

Action Taken: Adopted Rejected Postponed ___ _ 

Follow-up Needed: Yes No Reporting Back Date: ____ _ 

Notes: 
See Attached Policy 272, Telecommuting . 





272 - Telecomuting Policy 

1.0 PURPOSE 

Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 
Administrative Manual 

272 - Telecomuting Policy 

The purpose of the Telecomuting Policy is to establish policies and procedures to 
encourage, where appropriate, the use of telecommuting in order to attract and retain a 
diverse and talented work force by adopting workplace strategies that support flexibility 
and mobility in the workplace, to be an employer of choice, reduce costs, encourage 
affordable traffic mitigation, and further goals of local, state and national policies and 
regulations such as the Clean Air Act and the Commute Trip Reduction Law. Additionally, 
to provide the District with the ability to select and place employees in a telecommuting 
status, based on public health and safety recommendations and measures. 

Telecommuting is supported as an alternative work arrangement and allows the District 
to implement telecommuting arrangements where appropriate for eligible employees. 
Telecommuting is not a right and requires prior approval of the District General Manager. 
The District or employee may discontinue the telecommuting arrangement at any time 
without advance notice. 

2.0 SCOPE 
All employees must meet the criterion for Telecommuting and request the opportunity to 
do so. 

3.0 DEFINITIONS 
wTelecommuting" means work performed at an employee's residence to conduct an 
employee's job duties, or at other locations when approved by employee's direct 
supervisor. 

"District Facilities" refer to the Mount Rainier Pool and District Offices. 

4.0 POLICY 
An employee may be permitted to telecommute for all or a portion of the employee's 
workweek, if approved in advance by the District General Manager. Telecommuting may 
be approved if the duties will not negatively impact service delivery, customer service, or 
the overall function of the work unit. 

5.0 TELECOMMUTING PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS 
• The duties, obligations and responsibilities of an employee who telecommutes shall 

remain the same as the employee's duties, obligations and responsibilities prior to 
telecommuting 

• The amount of time spent telecommuting during a work week may vary by position , 
department expectations and equipment needs. 

• Unless authorized by the District General Manager, telecommuting shall not generally 
be used as a substitute for dependent care. A telecommuting employee must make 
arrangements for dependent care during the telecommuting period to ensure that 

DRAFT 1: 0410212020 272-1 



272 - Telecomuting Policy 
Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 

Administrative Manual 

dependent care does not interfere with the employee's performance of their job 
responsibilities. 

• Telecommuting employees shall not hold in-person business meetings with internal or 
external clients, customers or colleagues at their residence. 

• A telecommuting employee may not perform work for a non-District employer during 
the telecommuting period . Unless a telecommuting employee is on pre-approved 
leave, the employee must communicate effectively with supervisors, co-workers, 
support staff and external clients during telecommuting period(s). 

• FLSA-exempt employees must indicate the hours they will be available to be reached 
by staff and customers, which shall also be approved by the employee's supervisor. 

• As part of approval of a telecommuting request, the supervisor may outline speCific 
job assignments and expectations the telecommuting employee must perform. Work 
schedule variations are subject to supervisor approval. 

• For Non-exempt employees covered under the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA), any 
hours beyond their normal work schedule must be authorized in advance by the 
employee's supervisor/director. 

• Employees who telecommute will be covered by worker'S compensation for all job
related injuries occurring at their home during their defined work period. The employee 
is responsible for maintaining a safe and ergonomic work environment. The District 
will not provide office furniture to employees who telecommute. 

• All District employees must use District issued equipment for telecommuting and 
follow all security measures setup by District). Personal devices are not allowed . This 
is to ensure the District's resources (Le. computer systems, networks, databases, 
corporate data etc.) are protected from unauthorized use and/or malicious attack that 
could result in loss of information, damage to critical applications, loss of revenue and 
damage to our public image. 

• All remote access will be managed by the District's IT consultant. 

• Telecommuters shall make every effort to secure District information in their residence 
and prevent unauthorized access to any District system or information. If District 
equipment is stolen or damaged while at the employee's residence, the employee is 
required to report the loss to their Supervisor, the District General Manager, and local 
law enforcement. 

• The telecommuter, supervisor or District General Manager may end the 
telecommuting arrangement at any time. 

• Telecommuters must understand and agree to the Program Requirements listed in 
this policy. 

6,0 ELIGIBILITY 
Employees are eligible, if they: 
• Have job duties that are not required to be performed at the District's facilities. 

DRAFT 1: 0410212020 272-2 



272 - Telecomuting Policy 
Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 

Administrative Manual 

• Can be available by cell phone, telephone, email or text, during all telecommuting 
hours. 

• There is minimal need for specialized material, equipment or other resources for 
telecommuting capability. 

• The employee's job is not dependent on the location of the workplace. 
• The employee shall have previously demonstrated to the department director's 

satisfaction, their capability to work productively without direct supervision . 

7.0 EMPLOYEE RESPONSIBILITY 

An eligible employee seeking to telecommute must submit a written request to their 
supervisor. The written request must include: 

• Proposed Telecommuting day(s) per week and number of hours per day requested 
and proposed duration of telecommuting arrangements. 

• Tasks the employee proposes performing while telecommuting. 
• Core working hours during which the telecommuting employee will be on work status 

and available to be reached by staff and customers. 
• Complete IT Department document Remote Access Policy and Agreement prior to 

start of telecommuting. 

8.0 ASSIGNED TELECOMMUTING 
Under other-than-normal circumstances, including but not limited to; natural disasters, 
risks to public safety and/or health, at the discretion of the District, employees may be 
asked to telecommute, in order to maintain effective operations of government. 

While not all employees will be able to telecommute, the District will identify employees 
who are essential to daily operations, and make every effort to provide telecommuting 
options for them, if/when the current status of the District, City, County and/or State 
recommends or requires it. Assignment of telecommuting, to employees, will be 
consistent with the District's Continuity of Operations Plan (Policy ). 

DRAFT 1: 04/02/2020 272-3 



272 - Telecomuling Policy 
Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Parl< District 

Administrative Manual 

TELECOMMUTING REQUEST FORM 
Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 

Employees who wish to telecommute must complete and submit this form to supervisor for approvals prior to 
telecommuting. The District General Manager agrees to monitor the employee's performance and adhere to 
established guidelines and work standards. 

Employee Name (Printed): , 
Position Title: ~ 

Supervisor. " , , , 
Days Requested to 
Telecommute: . 
Primary Work Hours: -, 

Number Available At: , 
; 

Purpose of Telecommuting: 

. 

Employee Agreement: I hereby request approval to telecommute. I understand that the District or employee may 
discontinue the telecommuting agreement at any time. 1 have read Telecommuting Policy 272. understand. and 
agree to adhere to all policies required to participate in the telecommuting program. 

Employee: _ _ _______ _______ -:-___ _ _ Date: _____ _ 

Supervisor: _ ____ ________ ____ ____ _ Date: ___ __ _ 

District GM: _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _______ _ ____ _ Date: _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 

DRAFT 1: 0410212020 272-4 





Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 

AGENDA ITEMS SUMMARY SHEET 

Agenda Item #: 7d Assigned to: District GM Meeting Date: 0412112020 

Under~ Business Attachment: ves 

Subject: Policy 527, Use of Electronic Signatures 

Background/Summary: The district management staff suggests implementing a digital 
signature process through DocuSign for continuity of business during the COVID-19 Pandemic 
and for improved efficiency afterwards. 

The attached Policy 527 "Use of Electronic Signatures" will allow the District to obtain digital 
signatures for vouchers, contracts and other important board and business documents. This 
will ensure efficiency of essential services including payroll , stipends and other pertinent 
Drocesses. 

I Fiscal Impact: I There is an annual fee of $300 + applicable taxes. 

Proposed Motion: I move to approve Policy 527 "Use of Electronic Signatures" in response to 
the COVID-19 Pandemic. 

Reviewed by Legal Counsel: Ves --'X"---_ No Date: 0411512020 

Two Touch Rule: --,E~m~e"rg~en~c~y,-_ ___ Committee Review 
.cO~4~12~1~1~2~02~0~ _ _ __ First Board Meeting (Informational) 
_O~4!'./"-21,-,1",20",2,,O,----___ Second Board Meeting (Action) 

Action Taken: Adopted Rejected Postponed _ __ _ 

Follow-up Needed: Yes _ _ _ No Reporting Back Date: ____ _ 

Notes: 

See Attached : 
1. See attached Policy 527 ·Use of Electronic Signatures· 
2. DocuSign Information. https:/lwww.docusign.com/products-and-pricing 





527 - Use of Electronic Signatures Policy 
Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 

Administrative Manual 

527 - Use of Electronic Signatures Policy 

1.0 PURPOSE 
To establish an electronic signature policy for the Des Moines Pool Metropitan Park 
District "District" developed to: 

• Promote efficiency in order to conserve public resources; 
• Establish guidelines for the use of electronic signatures for certain District 

Itransactions; 
• Provide reasonable assurance of the integrity, authenticity, and nonrepudiation of 

electronic documents when electronic signatures are used by the District; and 
• Determine the scope of the District's use of the current electronic signature 

provider DocuSign as the approved method for affixing an electronic signature to 
an electronic record. These policies will apply to any future replacement of the 
DocuSign platform. 

Reducing the District's reliance on paper-based transactions will further improve 
information security and sharing, allow faster approval of and access to documents, and 
reduce costs andenvironmental impact. 

2.0 SCOPE 
Streamlining the processes described herein that require wet signatures and replacing 
them with electronic Signatures, when practicable, is consistent with the intent of 
Washington State law to promote electronic transactions and remove barriers that might 
prevent the use of electronic transactions by governmental entities. 

3.0 REFERENCES 
RCW Ch. 19.360 Electronic Signatures and Records 
15 U.S.C Ch. 96 Electronic Signatures in Global and National Commerce Act 

4.0 DEFINITIONS 
"Designee" refers to a District Board Member or District Employee who has been 
designated by the District's Board to sign District records on their behalf using an 
electronic signature. 
"Electronic Signaturen

: An electronic sound, symbol , or process attached to or logically 
associated with a contract or other record and executed or adopted by a person with the 
intent to sign the record . 
"Record": Information that is inscribed on a tangible medium or that is stored in an 
electronic or other medium and is retrievable in perceivable form, except as othelWise 
defined for the purpose of state or local agency record retention, preservation , or 
disclosure. 
"Wet Signature": A signature created when a person physically marks a document with 
the intent to sign the record. 

DRAFT 1: 04/1 412020 527·1 

DRAFT



527 - Use of Electronic Signatures Policy 

5.0 POLICY 

Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 
Administrative Manual 

1. The District encourages electronic transactions and the use of electronic signatures, 
and recognizes electronic signatures as legally binding and equivalent in force and 
effecl as a wei signature. 

2. The District authorizes the use of the DocuSign electronic signature platform, or any 
future replacement of such platform, to affix electronic signatures to District records. 

3. The District General Manager, District Clerk, Clerk of the Board. President of the 
Board, Board of Commissioners, and their designees are authorized to use the 
DocuSign electronic signature platform or any future replacement of such platform to 
affix electronic signatures to District records as provided in this policy. 

4 . The DocuSign electronic signature platform , or any future replacement of such 
platform, is authorized to affix electronic signatures to the following records: Minutes 
of Board Meetings, Board of Commissioner Sign-In Sheets for Stip-Ends, 
Resolutions and Ordinances Adopted by the Board of Commissioners, Claim 
Vouchers Approved by the Clerk of the board, and any and all contracts and 
agreements to which the District is a party. 

5. Electronic signatures may be used on District records requiring execution by a third 
party. 

6. This policy may be modified . rescinded, or replaced at any time by the Des Moines 
Pool Metropolitan Park District by a majority vote. 

DRAFT 1: 0411412020 527-2 

DRAFT











Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 

AGENDA ITEMS SUMMARY SHEET 

Agenda Item #: 7e Assigned to: District GM Meeting Date: 0412112020 

Under; Business Attachment: Yes 

Subject: Economic and Budget Implications 

Background/Summary: The current COVID-1 9 Pandemic will have impacts on the economy 
that will affect the community and the District. 

Revenues and Expenses 
It is too early to tell what the overall implications will be on revenues and expenses, but once 
we have a clearer path we will notify the board and update projections. It is important to realize 
that even though we are not bringing in revenue, we will have less expenses of operating the 
pool. 

Property Taxes 
The impact on property taxes will not Affect the District this year. Although King County has 
pushed the deadline back to July, we have adequate monies to cover this. Typically, it takes 
18-24 months for a government agency, but according to the article, "When will you feel the 
fiscal impact of COVID-19?", 

It is possible, however, that foreclosures in property-tax-dependent cities (due to 
unemployment and the inability to pay taxes and mortgages) might happen more quickly than 
anticipated, driving property tax revenue down sooner than the typical 18 to 24 months 

Hopefully. the State and Federal measures will help reduce this, but we just do not have 
enough information at this time. 

I Fiscal Impact: Not known at this time. 

1 Proposed Motion: No motion necessary. 

Reviewed by Legal Counsel: Yes No Date: 

Two Touch Rule: NIA Committee Review 
N/A First Board Meeting (Informational) 
NIA Second Board Meeting (Action) 

Action Taken: Adopted Rejected Postponed 

Follow-up Needed: Yes No Reporting Back Date: 

Notes: See attached article, "\lVhen will you feel the fiscal impact of COVID-19?" by the Brookings 
Institute.* *https:ljwww.brookings .edu/blog/the-avenue/2020/03/31/when-will-your-city-feel-the-fiscal-impact
of-coyid-19/ 

https://www.brookingsedu/blog/the-avvenue/2020/03/31 when-will-your-city-feel-the-fiscal-impact-of-covid-19













	packet.pdf
	packet 2.pdf



